
 

 

 

Public Facilities Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
This meeting will be held both in person at the County Council Chambers, 1000 Ribaut Road, 

Beaufort, and also virtually through Zoom. Please be aware that there is limited seating 
available for the in-person meeting, and attendees must wear masks. 

Monday, October 18, 2021 
3:30 PM 

*OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING, NO SOONER 
THAN 3:00PM* 

AGENDA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. CITIZEN COMMENTS - (ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the 
meeting will limit their comments to no longer than three (3) minutes ( a total of 15 minutes ) and will 
address Council in a respectful manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the 
use of profane, abusive, or obscene language) 

6. ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT  
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

7. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD RFP HXD 091021 LOWCOUNTRY COMMERCIAL SERVICES ($259,424)             

8. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD (RFP) HXD 091021 ON POINT COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL CLEANING 

($34,029.60)  

9. CHANGE ORDER #2 FOR DNA LABORATORY ADDITION A&E SERVICES ($67,717.25) 

10. CHANGE ORDER #1 FOR DETOUR ROAD PATHWAY PROJECT ($52,400) 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
  STU RODMAN, CHAIRMAN   YORK GLOVER, VICE CHAIRMAN   
  CHRIS HERVOCHON,     BRIAN FLEWELLING,  
   MARK LAWSON 

1



Public Facilities Committee Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

11. INTRODUCTION TO RFQ #092021E – CONSULTING SERVICES FOR CONVERSION TO ELECTRIC FLEET  

12. APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS FOR THE ACCEPTANCE OF PROPERTIES ENCUMBERING THE ROAD RIGHT OF 
WAY FOR CRYSTAL BEACH LANE 

13. APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN ACCESS AND UTILITY 
EASEMENT FOR A PORTION OF A RIGHT OF WAY OWNED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY KNOWN AS CASSIDY 
DRIVE OFF BUCKWALTER PARKWAY IN BULFFTON TOWNSHIP SOUTH CAROLINA 

14. FOLLOW UP ON KING GEORGE ROAD PRIVATE ROAD ACCEPTANCE APPLICATION INTO COUNTY ROAD 
SYSTEM. 

15. RAINBOW ROAD STATUS DISCUSSION 

16. ADOPTION OF BUCKWALTER ACCESS MANAGEMENT PLAN 

17. BUCKWALTER/BLUFFTON PARKWAY (BP²) INTERSECTION DISCUSSION  

18. PRESENTATION BY THE CITY OF BEAUFORT APPOINTED CHARLES LIND BROWN COMMUNITY CENTER TASK 
FORCE.  

19. FACILITIES MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

20. PFC OBJECTIVES DISCUSSION 

21. CHAIRMAN'S WRAP UP  

22. ADJOURNMENT 

 

TO WATCH COMMITTEE OR COUNTY COUNCIL MEETINGS OR FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF AGENDAS AND 
BACKUP PACKAGES PLEASE VISIT: 

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html 

 

 

2

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html


BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of Award RFP HXD 091021 Lowcountry Commercial Services ($259,424)             

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – October 18, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E. ACA – Engineering   

Jon Rembold, C.M. Airports Director (Alternate) 

(2 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The existing county-wide contractor was not willing to provide the level of service needed at the airport, so 
the airport requested permission to withdraw from that program. This is the second time this opportunity 
was offered for bid. The initial round did not produce a suitable solution so the opportunity was rewritten and 
re-bid. In the interim, the airport executed a short-term contract with Lowcountry Commercial Services 
(LCCS), whose workmanship was loudly and consistently praised by airport tenants. 

Proposal packages were opened and reviewed on September 10, 2021. The companies and their proposed 
fees include: 

1. Lowcountry Commercial Services*, Hilton Head Island, SC   $235,840 
2. EJSCS, Inc., Little Rock, AR   $181,200 
3. LGC Global, Franklin, TN    $295,800 

*Lowcountry Commercial Services bid has been reviewed, the firm was interviewed, and is the airport’s 
selection. They are a minority-owned firm and are located in close proximity to the airport.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

This contract provides Hilton Head Island Airport with janitorial services on a long-term basis. The scope of 
required services has been discussed in depth with the selected contractor and they have indicated they have 
the ability to meet the needs of the airport. Furthermore, LCCS demonstrated their ability to exceed 
standards during the busiest season at the airport. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Lowcountry Commercial Services bid is a total of $235,840 to provide janitorial services at Hilton Head Island 
Airport. With a 10% contingency of $23,584, the total cost of these services is $259,424. The funding source 
for the janitorial services is the expense account 54000011-51170 with a current balance of $456,021.10.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COMMITTEE: 

Staff recommends awarding (RFP) HXD 091021 to Lowcountry Commercial Services.     

OPTIONS FOR COMMITTEE MOTION: 
Motion to approve /deny the recommendation of award for RFP HXD 091021 to Lowcountry Commercial  
Services. 
(Next Steps -The contract amount is more than $100,000, therefore, does need to be forwarded to Council.)        

3

Item 7.



 

4

Item 7.



RFP HXD 091021

Summary Score Sheet

Final Round Scoring

Evaluators Name of Company Name of Company Name of Company   
LCCS EJSCS On Point

M. Myers 90 77 88
S. Parry 86 77 80
J. Rembold 92 81 85

TOTALS: 268 235 253

1. LCCS 268
2. On Point 253
3. EJSCS 235

Janitorial Services for Beaufort County Airports

5

Item 7.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of Award (RFP) HXD 091021 On Point Commercial and Residential Cleaning ($34,029.60)  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – October 18, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E. ACA – Engineering   

Jon Rembold, C.M. Airports Director (Alternate) 

(2 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The existing county-wide contractor was not willing to provide the level of service needed at the airport, so 
the airport requested permission to withdraw from that program. This is the second time this opportunity 
was offered for bid. The initial round did not produce a suitable solution so the opportunity was rewritten and 
re-bid. In the interim, the airport executed a short-term contract with On Point Commercial and Residential 
Cleaning, whose professional work produced immediate results and received accolades from visitors and 
regulars at Beaufort Executive Airport. 

Proposal packages were opened and reviewed on September 10, 2021. The companies and their proposed 
fees include: 

1. On Point Commercial and Residential Cleaning*, Lady’s Island, SC   $39,029.60 
2. LGC Global, Franklin, TN    $16,980 (offered in tandem with HXD) 
3. SSCo, Phoenix, AZ     $30,000 (offered in tandem with HXD) 

*On Point’s bid has been reviewed, the firm was interviewed, and is the airport’s selection. They are a 
minority-owned firm and are located in close proximity to the airport.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

This contract provides Beaufort Executive Airport with janitorial services on a long-term basis. The scope of 
required services has been discussed in depth with the selected contractor and they have indicated they have 
the ability to meet the needs of the airport. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

On Point Commercial and Residential Cleaning bid is a total of $30,936 to provide janitorial services at 
Beaufort Executive Airport. With a 10% contingency of $3,093.60, the total cost of the project is $34,029.60. 
The funding source for the janitorial services is the expense account 51000011-51170 with a current balance 
of  $36,900.00.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COMMITTEE: 

Staff recommends awarding (RFP) HXD 091021 to On Point Commercial and Residential Cleaning.     

OPTIONS FOR COMMITTEE MOTION: 
Motion to approve /deny the recommendation of award for (RFP) HXD 091021 to On Point Commercial  
and Residential Cleaning.     

6

Item 8.



(Next Steps -The contract amount over its lifespan exceeds $100,000, therefore, does need to be forwarded to 
Council.)        

 

7

Item 8.



RFP HXD 091021

Summary Score Sheet

Final Round Scoring

Evaluators Name of Company Name of Company Name of Company   
LCCS EJSCS On Point

M. Myers 90 77 88
S. Parry 86 77 80
J. Rembold 92 81 85

TOTALS: 268 235 253

1. LCCS 268
2. On Point 253
3. EJSCS 235

Janitorial Services for Beaufort County Airports

8

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Change Order #2 for DNA Laboratory Addition A&E Services 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – October 10, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator – Engineering 

(5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

In November 2019, Beaufort County Engineering entered contract with Beaufort Design Build under the Small 
Architecture and Engineering for projects less than $50,000 for surveying, engineering, permitting and 
construction engineering and inspection services of the DNA Laboratory Addition. As we proceeded have 
experienced delays during construction, Beaufort Design Build’s contract must be extended.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The contract for the original scope of work was $35,000 purchased under the Small A&E registry. Beaufort 
County Engineering increased the contract by $4,317.25 for geotechnical services and reimbursables in 
September 2020. With the additional work to be performed in the amount of $28,400, the registry threshold 
of $50,000 has been exceeded and approval is needed by Beaufort County Public Facilities Committee. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

An additional $28,400 approval of change order #2 increases the contract cost to $67,717.25 which will be 
fully funded by a deduction from the construction contractor’s contract. There will be no additional costs to 
Beaufort County or Sheriff’s Office. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of change order #2 in the amount of $28,400 to increase the contract with 
Beaufort Design Build for a total contract of $67,717.25. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny Andrews Engineering change order #2 in the amount of $28,400 to increase the 
contract to a total of $67,717.25 for the DNA Laboratory Addition. 

Next Step: Staff to execute change order as this item does not exceed $100,000, therefore; does not require 
County Council approval. 

 

9

Item 9.



 

Beaufort Design Build, LLC  
2 Fire Station Lane, Seabrook, South Carolina 29940 

 (843) 466-3664 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

August 12, 2021 

Mr. J. Wes Campbell 
Beaufort County Facility Management 
120 Shanklin Road 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29906 
jcampbell@bcgov.net 

Re:  Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office 
 DNA Laboratory Addition 
 Change Order Proposal 002 

Wes: 

Please accept this letter as our formal request for additional design fees for the above referenced 
Purchase Order.  This request is based on April 21, 2021 Change Order Proposal (attached) and my 
June 16, 2021 email (attached). 

In accordance with the attached documents and based on a new estimated completion date of August 
31, 2021, we request that our original fee be increased by a total amount of twenty eight thousand, 
four hundred dollars and zero cents ($28,400.00). This figure includes the following. 

• Our April 21, 2021 request was for twenty three thousand four hundred dollars and zero cents 
($23,400.00) and was based on a completion date of May 31, 2021.  Since this date has come 
and gone and the Project is still not finished, all of the work outlined in our Request has been 
completed.  It is our intention to invoice for this amount ($23,400.00) immediately. 

• The remaining five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) is for the additional three (3) months beyond 
the May 31, 2021 completion date and is calculated using a rate of one thousand, six hundred 
and sixty seven dollars and zero cents ($1,667.00) per month for construction period services 
(the rate included in our original fee).  This amount will be billed after the project has been 
closed out. 

Currently, we are working with the County and Cloud Construction to complete the punch-list that was 
prepared by our office on July 16, 2021. When the punch-list has been completed, we will begin work 
on closeout of the contract. 

If you have any questions or need additional information regarding this proposal, please don’t hesitate 
to call or write. 

Sincerely, 
 

Beaufort Design Build, LLC 
 

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL for: 
Purchase Order 20200916-00 

 
 

10

Item 9.



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

Daniel C. Saltrick, AIA 

 
Copy: Adam Biery, Beaufort Design Build 
 Carmen Morrison, Beaufort Design Build 

Attachment:  Beaufort County Purchase Order PO 20200916-00  

11

Item 9.



From: dan@beaufortdesignbuild.com
To: "Campbell, John"
Cc: "Adam Biery BDB"
Subject: RE: DNA Lab Add Services
Date: Wednesday, June 16, 2021 9:36:45 AM
Attachments: 19044 Change Order Proposal 002.pdf

Hello Wes.

As requested, below is a summary of how we calculated our additional fee for the DNA Lab,
Construction Period Services.

1. Requested additional fee: $23,400.00.

2. Original Construction Period: October 05, 2020 through April 02, 2021 = 180 calendar days = 6
months

3. Current Estimated Completion Date: July 31, 2021

4. Revised Estimated Construction Period: October 05, 2021 through July 31, 2021 = 299
calendar days = 10 months

5. Total Fee in our original Agreement: $10,000.00 or $1,667.00 per month

6. If we add our original fee and the requested additional fee, the total is $33,400.00 or
$3,340.00 per month

7. Adam’s time alone has averaged 8 hours per week which is $1,000.00 per week or $4,000.00
per month.

8. $4,000.00 per month x 10 months = $40,000.00 (our Original Fee + Additional Fee Request =
$33,400.00).

Please note that since our Change Order Proposal was submitted on April 21, 2021, the Project has
continued to be delayed.  At this time, we are not requesting additional fee (beyond what we
requested in our April 23 Proposal) but we reserve the right to do so at the completion of the
Project.

Hope this helps.

Dan

 

 
 
 
 
Daniel C. Saltrick, AIA
Beaufort Design Build, LLC
2 Fire Station Lane
Seabrook, South Carolina 29940
O: 843-466-3664
C: 704-618-1302
 

12

Item 9.




 


Beaufort Design Build, LLC  
2 Fire Station Lane, Seabrook, South Carolina 29940 


 (843) 466-3664 
 


 
 
 
 
 


April 21, 2021 


Mr. J. Wes Campbell 
Beaufort County Facility Management 
120 Shanklin Road 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29906 
jcampbell@bcgov.net 


Re:  Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office 
 DNA Laboratory Addition 
 Change Order Proposal 002 


Wes: 


With regard to the above referenced Project and as discussed, delays to the Contractor’s Construction 
Schedule, excessive review of submittals, coordination for correction of deficient and/or non-
conforming work and multiple meetings to discuss the Contractor’s failure to perform in accordance 
with the Contract and Contract Documents have resulted in Beaufort Design Build’s expenditure of a 
considerable amount of time and money that are above and beyond what was allowed for in our 
original Fee Proposal.  A brief summary of work that has been completed outside of our original scope 
follows. 


• All of the Contractor’s submittals have required at least two (2) reviews before an approval 
could be issued.  Many have required as many as three (3) or four (4) reviews.  For example, 
the Schedule of Values required three (3) reviews and Casework and Hardware has been 
submitted five (5) times and is still not approved. 


• Items such as vinyl windows, ductwork, moisture and air barriers and plumbing piping have 
been installed without a submittal having ever been made.  With regard to the windows, 
because the installed units did not meet the requirements of the drawings or specifications our 
office spent a considerable amount of time researching products to see if the situation could 
be rectified without having to replace them.  Ultimately, we determined that because the 
installed units were intended for renovation and not new construction they needed to be 
replaced. 


• Floor joists were not installed in accordance with the drawings and specifications or the 
Contractor’s shop drawings.  This issue was brought to the Contractor’s attention in November 
2020 and was not resolved until March 2021.  In the meantime, our office  coordinated with the 
Contractor, the Structural Engineer and the Pre-Engineered Joist Manufacturer to look for 
solutions. 


• On multiple weeks, our office had to be on-site two (2) days rather than one (1) to compensate 
for the Contractor not being ready on the first visit to discuss work that, in accordance with the 
Contractor’s Schedule, should have been in place but was not. 


CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL for: 
PO 20200916-00 


 
 







Page 2 of 2 
 


 


• Since the start of construction, the Contractor has had three (3) different project managers and 
two (2) different site superintendents.  As you know, each change in personnel has required 
that time be spent bringing the new person up to speed on open issues and submittals. 


• Two on-site meetings and one Zoom meeting were held with the Contractor to discuss 
personnel issues, failure to perform in accordance with the Contract Documents, schedule 
delays and other deficiencies.  In addition to the time spent in these meetings, each required 
time to prepare an agenda, update logs and phone calls with you and Andrea ahead of the 
meeting. 


• Generally speaking, our office has been required to spend a considerable amount of time 
sending emails and making phone calls to follow up on requests for proposal, supplemental 
instructions, issues log items and other tasks that are part of our construction period services 
scope of work. 


• The original April 03, 2021 Contract Completion Date has been changed to May 31, 2021 (58 
additional days).  As discussed this delay is the result of the issues outlined above.   


At this time, we are requesting that our Purchase Order (20200916-00) be increased by twenty-three 
thousand, four hundred dollars and zero cents ($23,400.00).  This request covers all additional work to 
date as well as costs projected through the current Construction Completion date of May 31, 2021.  
Please note that our projected cost is based on our monthly expenditures to date as well as 
anticipated costs based on the Action Items and Submittal Logs reviewed in our April 14, 2021 
progress meeting.  These documents are attached. 


Of this amount, eighteen thousand dollars will be billed immediately after approval of this Request and 
the balance will be billed in two parts:  $2,700.00 on or about May 31, 2021 and $2,700.00 after 
delivery of closeout documents. 


Lastly, I want to mention that Beaufort Design Build worked very hard to bring this Project in under 
budget on bid day and we have been working throughout the construction period to keep it under 
budget.  While we regret that the Project is not on schedule, a review of our meeting notes, issues log 
and other logs and paperwork shows that we have worked diligently to manage the project as best we 
could given the circumstances.  We hope that you are understanding of our position and this request. 


If you have any questions or need additional information regarding this proposal, please don’t hesitate 
to call or write. 


Sincerely, 
 


Beaufort Design Build, LLC 
 
 


 


Daniel C. Saltrick, AIA 


 
Copy: Adam Biery, Beaufort Design Build 
 Carmen Morrison, Beaufort Design Build 


Attachment:  Beaufort County Purchase Order PO 20200916-00  







B
e


a
u


fo
rt


 D
e


s
ig


n
 B


u
ild


, 
L


L
C


 


2
 F


ir
e


 S
ta


ti
o


n
 L


a
n


e
, 
S


e
a


b
ro


o
k
, 
S


o
u


th
 C


a
ro


lin
a


 2
9


9
4
0


  
• 


 8
4


3
-4


6
6


-3
6
6


4
  
• 


 w
w


w
.b


e
a


u
fo


rt
d


e
s
ig


n
b
u


ild
.c


o
m


 


 P
a
g
e
 1


 o
f 


3
 


 


 


O
ri


g
in


a
l 
Is


s
u


e
 D


a
te


: 
A


u
g


u
s
t 


1
0
, 


2
0


2
0


 
P


re
p


a
re


d
 B


y
: 


A
d
a


m
 B


ie
ry


  


R
e


v
is


io
n


 (
P


ri
n


t)
 D


a
te


: 
A


p
ri


l 
1


4
, 
2


0
2
1


  
B


D
B


 #
: 


1
9
0
4


4
.0


0
 


P
ro


je
c
t:


 
B


e
a


u
fo


rt
 C


o
u
n


ty
 D


N
A


 L
a


b
o


ra
to


ry
 A


d
d


it
io


n
  


O
w


n
e
r’


s
 #


: 
0
5
2
9


2
0


E
 


O
w


n
e
r:


 
B


e
a


u
fo


rt
 C


o
u
n


ty
 


C
o


n
tr


a
c


to
r’


s
 #


: 
T


B
D


 


C
o


n
tr


a
c


to
r:


 
C


lo
u


d
 C


M
, 
L


L
C


. 
 


 


 


It
e


m
 #


 
D


at
e


 
N


o
te


d
 


D
at


e
 


R
e


q
u


ir
e


d
 


Is
su


e
 


Id
e


n
ti


fi
e


d
 


B
y 


R
e


sp
o


n
si


b
le


 
P


ar
ty


 
A


ct
io


n
 T


ak
e


n
 


V
e


ri
fi


e
d


 
B


y 
D


at
e


 
V


e
ri


fi
e


d
 


C
o


m
p


le
te


 
Y


e
s/


N
o


 
 


0
1


. 
0


8
/2


5
/2


0
 


0
9


/0
4


/2
0


 
B


D
B


 t
o


 p
ro


vi
d


e 
Su


b
m


it
ta


l L
o


g 
w


it
h


 
re


q
u


ir
ed


 S
u


b
m


it
ta


ls
  


A
rc


h
 


A
rc


h
 


A
tt


ac
h


ed
 t


o
 P


re
-C


o
n


 
M


ee
ti


n
g 


N
o


te
s 


A
D


B
 


0
8


/3
1


/2
0


 
Ye


s 


0
2


. 
0


8
/2


5
/2


0
 


A
SA


P
 


Su
b


co
n


tr
ac


to
rs


 L
is


t 
is


 r
e


q
u


ir
ed


 f
o


r 
P


er
m


it
ti


n
g 


 
A


rc
h


 
G


C
 


C
o


n
tr


ac
to


r 
Su


b
m


it
te


d
 li


st
 


to
 C


it
y 


o
f 


B
ea


u
fo


rt
 


A
D


B
 


- 
Ye


s 


0
3


. 
0


8
/2


5
/2


0
 


 
C


o
u


n
ty


’s
 r


eq
u


ir
em


en
ts


 f
o


r 
ac


ce
ss


 c
o


n
tr


o
l, 


se
cu


ri
ty


 a
n


d
 t


e
le


co
m


 a
re


 n
ee


d
e


d
 


O
w


n
er


 
O


w
n


er
 


C
o


u
n


ty
’s


 r
eq


u
ir


em
en


ts
 


w
er


e 
p


ro
vi


d
e


d
, R


FP
 


p
ro


vi
d


ed
 t


o
 G


C
 


A
D


B
 


1
2


/0
2


/2
0


 
Ye


s 


0
4


. 
0


8
/2


5
/2


0
 


P
ri


o
r 


to
 


st
ar


t 
St


ag
in


g 
an


d
 la


yd
o


w
n


 p
la


n
 n


ee
d


 t
o


 b
e 


su
b


m
it


te
d


 
A


rc
h


 
G


C
 


Si
te


 v
is


it
 c


o
n


d
u


ct
e


d
 a


n
d


 
ar


ea
s 


id
en


ti
fi


ed
 


A
D


B
 


1
0


/2
1


/2
0


 
Ye


s 


0
5


. 
0


8
/2


5
/2


0
 


P
ri


o
r 


to
 


fi
rs


t 
P


ay
 


A
p


p
 


Sc
h


ed
u


le
 o


f 
V


al
u


es
 a


n
d


 S
ch


ed
u


le
 t


o
 b


e 
su


b
m


it
te


d
 a


n
d


 a
p


p
ro


ve
d


 b
y 


A
rc


h
it


ec
t 


A
rc


h
 


G
C


 
It


em
s 


w
er


e 
su


b
m


it
te


d
, 


n
o


t 
ap


p
ro


ve
d


 
A


D
B


 
- 


Ye
s 


0
6


. 
1


1
/1


1
/2


0
 


A
SA


P
 


N
ee


d
 k


ey
in


g 
sc


h
e


d
u


le
 f


o
r 


d
o


o
r 


h
ar


d
w


ar
e


 
A


rc
h


 
O


w
n


er
 


K
ey


 a
s 


p
er


 S
p


ec
s 


A
D


B
 


0
1


/2
0


/2
1


 
Ye


s 


0
7


. 
1


1
/0


9
/2


0
 


A
SA


P
 


So
il 


b
ea


ri
n


g 
/ 


co
m


p
ac


ti
o


n
 t


es
ti


n
g 


re
q


u
ir


ed
 


A
rc


h
 


G
C


 
Te


st
 c


o
n


d
u


ct
ed


 a
n


d
 


p
as


se
d


 
A


D
B


 
1


1
/1


6
/2


0
 


Ye
s 


0
8


. 
1


1
/0


9
/2


0
 


A
SA


P
 


C
o


n
cr


et
e 


st
re


n
gt


h
 t


es
ti


n
g 


re
q


u
ir


e
d


 
A


rc
h


 
O


w
n


er
 


Fi
rs


t 
te


st
 c


o
n


d
u


ct
ed


; 
se


co
n


d
 t


es
t 


sc
h


e
d


u
le


d
 


A
D


B
 


- 
Ye


s 


0
9


. 
1


1
/1


1
/2


0
 


A
SA


P
 


C
o


rn
er


 g
u


ar
d


 c
o


lo
r 


se
le


ct
io


n
 /


 p
e


n
d


in
g 


o
th


er
 in


te
ri


o
r 


se
le


ct
io


n
s 


A
rc


h
 


O
w


n
er


 /
 G


C
 


6
 c


o
lo


r 
o


p
ti


o
n


s,
 p


h
ys


ic
al


 
sa


m
p


le
s,


 h
av


e 
b


e
en


 
p


ro
vi


d
e 


b
y 


G
C


 
A


D
B


 
0


3
/0


3
/2


1
 


Ye
s 


IS
S


U
E


S
 L


O
G


 







 


P
a
g
e
 2


 o
f 


3
 


 


It
e


m
 #


 
D


at
e


 
N


o
te


d
 


D
at


e
 


R
e


q
u


ir
e


d
 


Is
su


e
 


Id
e


n
ti


fi
e


d
 


B
y 


R
e


sp
o


n
si


b
le


 
P


ar
ty


 
A


ct
io


n
 T


ak
e


n
 


V
e


ri
fi


e
d


 
B


y 
D


at
e


 
V


e
ri


fi
e


d
 


C
o


m
p


le
te


 
Y


e
s/


N
o


 


1
0


. 
1


1
/1


1
/2


0
 


0
2


/2
6


/2
1


 
R


es
o


lv
e 


fo
r 


st
em


 w
al


l f
in


is
h


 
A


rc
h


 
G


C
 


C
em


en
t 


St
u


cc
o


 o
n


 la
th


 t
o


 
b


e 
in


st
al


le
d


 
A


D
B


 
3


/2
6


/2
1


 
Ye


s 


1
1


. 
1


2
/0


1
/2


0
 


0
2


/2
6


/2
1


 
N


ee
d


 le
tt


er
 f


ro
m


 f
lo


o
r 


jo
is


t 
en


gi
n


ee
r 


fo
r 


la
ck


 o
f 


d
o


u
b


le
d


 jo
is


t 
u


n
d


er
 p


ar
al


le
l w


al
ls


 
A


R
C


H
 


G
C


 
C


o
n


ta
ct


o
r 


to
 in


st
al


l 
ad


d
it


io
n


al
 I 


jo
is


t 
se


e 
it


em
 


2
3


 b
el


o
w


 
A


D
B


 
3


/1
8


/2
1


 
Se


e 
It


em
 


2
3


 


1
2


. 
1


2
/2


2
/2


0
 


A
SA


P
 


In
st


al
la


ti
o


n
 o


f 
m


is
si


n
g 


ro
o


f 
o


ve
rh


an
gs


 
A


rc
h


 
G


C
 


O
ve


rh
an


gs
 A


d
d


ed
 


A
D


B
 


0
1


/1
3


/2
1


 
Ye


s 


1
3


. 
1


1
/2


5
/2


0
 


0
2


/2
6


/2
1


 
N


o
 r


es
p


o
n


se
 t


o
 R


FP
 0


1
, r


es
p


o
n


se
 r


eq
u


ir
ed


 
A


rc
h


 
G


C
 


R
es


p
o


n
se


 p
ro


vi
d


e
d


 
A


D
B


 
0


3
/2


5
/2


1
 


P
ar


ti
al


 


1
4


. 
0


1
/1


3
/2


1
 


A
SA


P
 


Lo
w


er
 H


V
A


C
 c


o
n


d
en


sa
te


 d
is


ch
ar


ge
 c


lo
se


r 
to


 g
ra


d
e


 
A


rc
h


 
G


C
 


1
 o


f 
2


 c
o


n
d


en
sa


te
 li


n
es


 
h


av
e 


b
e


en
 lo


w
er


ed
 


A
D


B
 


0
1


/2
5


/2
1


 
P


ar
ti


al
  


1
5


. 
0


1
/1


3
/2


1
 


0
2


/2
4


/2
1


 
W


in
d


o
w


s 
h


av
e 


b
e


en
 in


st
al


le
d


 w
it


h
 o


u
t 


su
b


m
it


ta
l /


 r
ev


ie
w


 a
n


d
 a


p
p


ro
va


l  
A


rc
h


 
G


C
 


 
 


 
 


1
6


. 
0


1
/1


3
/2


1
 


0
1


/2
9


/2
1


 
Si


te
 t


o
 b


e 
gr


ad
ed


  
O


w
n


er
 


G
C


 
G


ra
d


in
g 


in
 p


ro
gr


es
s 


A
D


B
 


0
2


/1
0


/2
1


 
P


ar
ti


al
 


2
0


. 
0


1
/1


3
/2


1
 


0
2


/2
5


/2
1


 
U


p
d


at
e


d
 C


o
n


st
ru


ct
io


n
 S


ch
ed


u
le


 r
eq


u
e


st
e


d
  


O
w


n
er


 
G


C
 


Sc
h


ed
u


le
 p


ro
vi


d
e


d
 


A
D


B
 


0
2


/2
5


/2
1


 
Ye


s 


1
7


. 
0


1
/2


0
/2


1
 


A
SA


P
 


Ex
te


ri
o


r 
tr


im
 in


st
al


le
d


 in
co


rr
ec


tl
y 


 
A


rc
h


 
G


C
 


Ex
t.


 t
ri


m
 c


o
rr


ec
te


d
 


A
D


B
 


0
2


/1
0


/2
1


 
Ye


s 


1
8


. 
0


1
/2


0
/2


1
 


0
3


/0
4


/2
1


 
Ex


p
an


si
o


n
 jo


in
ts


 n
o


t 
in


st
al


le
d


 a
t 


b
u


ild
in


g 
co


n
n


ec
ti


o
n


 
A


rc
h


 
G


C
 


 
 


 
 


1
9


 
0


1
/2


0
/2


1
 


0
2


/1
2


/2
1


 
Li


en
 d


is
ch


ar
ge


 f
ro


m
 s


u
p


p
lie


r 
re


q
u


ir
ed


 
O


w
n


er
 


G
C


 
G


C
 p


ro
vi


d
e


d
 


d
o


cu
m


en
ta


ti
o


n
 o


f 
lie


n
 


re
le


as
e


 
A


D
B


 
0


2
/1


1
/2


1
 


Ye
s 


2
0


. 
0


1
/2


0
/2


1
 


0
2


/2
4


/2
1


 
A


ll 
su


b
m


it
ta


ls
 r


e
ga


rd
in


g 
in


te
ri


o
r 


fi
n


is
h


es
 


n
ee


d
 s


u
b


m
it


te
d


 f
o


r 
fi


n
is


h
 s


el
ec


ti
o


n
s 


(i
n


cl
u


d
e


d
 s


am
p


le
s 


an
d


 c
o


lo
r 


ch
ar


ts
) 


O
w


n
er


 /
 


A
rc


h
 


G
C


 
Se


le
ct


io
n


s 
P


ro
vi


d
e


 
A


D
B


 
0


3
/0


3
/2


1
 


Ye
s 


2
1


. 
0


2
/0


3
/2


1
 


- 
B


ft
. C


o
 IT


 r
eq


u
es


te
d


 f
o


r 
in


st
al


l o
f 


lo
w


 d
at


a 
lin


es
 a


n
d


 b
o


x 
lo


ca
ti


o
n


s 
A


rc
h


 
O


w
n


er
 


B
ft


. C
o


 IT
 d


ep
ar


tm
en


t 
re


p
s 


w
er


e 
o


n
 s


it
e,


 
d


ef
er


re
d


 t
o


 u
se


r 
/ 


Sh
er


if
f’


s 
O


ff
ic


e 


A
D


B
 


0
2


/1
0


/2
1


 
Ye


s 


2
2


. 
0


2
/1


0
/2


1
 


- 
B


ft
. C


o
 t


o
 c


o
n


ta
ct


 S
h


er
if


f’
s 


O
ff


ic
e 


fo
r 


lo
ca


ti
o


n
 a


n
d


 n
u


m
b


er
 o


f 
d


at
a 


d
ro


p
s 


in
 


o
ff


ic
es


  
O


w
n


er
 


G
C


 
Lo


ca
ti


o
n


 o
f 


d
ro


p
 a


n
d


 
q


u
an


ti
ty


 p
ro


vi
d


e
d


 b
y 


O
w


n
er


 (
se


e 
R


FP
 0


2
) 


A
D


B
 


0
2


/1
2


/2
1


 
Ye


s 


2
3


. 
0


3
/0


3
/2


0
2


1
 


0
3


/2
4


/2
0


2
1


 
In


st
al


l a
d


d
it


io
n


al
 I-


jo
is


t 
u


n
d


er
 w


al
ls


 
ru


n
n


in
g 


p
ar


al
le


l a
b


o
ve


  
A


rc
h


 
G


C
 


Le
tt


er
 O


b
ta


in
ed


 
A


D
B


 
0


3
/1


8
/2


1
 


Ye
s 


2
4


. 
0


3
/1


0
/2


0
2


1
 


0
3


/1
7


/2
1


 
C


o
ve


r 
H


V
A


C
 s


u
p


p
ly


 a
n


d
 r


et
u


rn
 d


u
ct


 
o


p
en


in
gs


 
A


rc
h


 
G


C
 


O
p


en
in


gs
 C


o
ve


re
d


 
A


D
B


 
0


3
/2


4
/2


1
 


Ye
s 







 


P
a
g
e
 3


 o
f 


3
 


 


It
e


m
 #


 
D


at
e


 
N


o
te


d
 


D
at


e
 


R
e


q
u


ir
e


d
 


Is
su


e
 


Id
e


n
ti


fi
e


d
 


B
y 


R
e


sp
o


n
si


b
le


 
P


ar
ty


 
A


ct
io


n
 T


ak
e


n
 


V
e


ri
fi


e
d


 
B


y 
D


at
e


 
V


e
ri


fi
e


d
 


C
o


m
p


le
te


 
Y


e
s/


N
o


 


2
5


. 
0


3
/1


0
/2


1
 


0
4


/1
4


/2
1


 


A
rc


h
 t


o
 s


u
p


p
ly


 G
C


 w
it


h
 le


tt
er


 r
e


ga
rd


in
g 


su
b


m
it


ta
ls


 w
h


ic
h


 w
er


e 
n


o
t 


su
b


m
it


te
d


 f
o


r 
w


o
rk


 t
h


at
 w


as
 p


re
fo


rm
ed


 a
n


d
 in


sp
ec


te
d


 
b


y 
th


ir
d


 p
ar


ty
 in


sp
ec


ti
o


n
s 


G
C


 
A


rc
h


 
 


 
 


 


2
6


. 
0


3
/1


0
/2


1
 


3
/2


4
/2


1
 


Li
en


 w
ai


ve
rs


 r
e


q
u


ir
ed


 f
o


r 
p


ro
ce


ss
 o


f 
P


ay
 


A
p


p
lic


at
io


n
 0


2
 


O
w


n
er


 
G


C
 


 
 


 
 


2
7


. 
0


3
/3


1
/2


1
 


0
4


/0
5


/2
1


 
G


C
 r


eq
u


es
te


d
 C


O
M


C
h


ec
k 


fo
r 


su
b


m
is


si
o


n
 


to
 C


it
y 


o
f 


B
ea


u
fo


rt
  


G
C


 
A


rc
h


 
C


O
M


C
h


ec
k 


re
p


o
rt


 s
en


t 
to


 G
C


 
A


D
B


 
0


4
/0


6
/2


1
 


Ye
s 


2
8


. 
0


4
/0


7
/2


1
 


0
4


/1
4


/2
1


 
G


C
 r


eq
u


es
t 


em
ai


l f
ro


m
 O


w
n


er
 f


o
rg


o
in


g 
EP


D
M


 r
o


o
f 


ti
e-


in
 w


ar
ra


n
ty


 
G


C
 


O
w


n
er


 
Em


ai
l S


en
t 


to
 G


C
 b


y 
O


w
n


er
 


A
D


B
 


0
4


/0
7


/2
1


 
Ye


s 


2
9


. 
0


4
/0


7
/2


1
 


0
4


/0
8


/2
1


 
G


C
 n


ee
d


s 
ex


ec
u


te
d


 C
h


an
ge


 R
e


q
u


es
t 


P
ro


p
o


sa
ls


 (
C


R
P


) 
(f


o
r 


so
u


n
d


 b
at


 &
 a


cc
es


s 
co


n
tr


o
l 


G
C


 
O


w
n


er
 /


A
rc


h
 


C
R


P
 s


en
t 


 
A


D
B


 
0


4
/0


8
/2


1
 


Ye
s 


3
0


. 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


3
1


. 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


3
2


. 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


En
d


 o
f 


Is
su


es
 L


o
g 







 
 


P
a
g


e
 1


 o
f 
8


 


S
U


B
M


IT
T


A
L
 L


O
G


 


O
ri


g
in


a
l 
Is


s
u


e
 D


a
te


: 
A


u
g


u
s
t 


2
8
, 


2
0


2
0


 
P


re
p


a
re


d
 B


y
: 


A
d
a


m
 D


. 
B


ie
ry


 


R
e


v
is


io
n


 (
P


ri
n


t)
 D


a
te


: 
A


p
ri


l 
1


4
, 
2


0
2
1


 
B


D
B


 #
: 


1
9
0
4


4
.0


0
 


P
ro


je
c
t:


 
B


e
a


u
fo


rt
 C


o
u
n


ty
 E


n
g
in


e
e
ri


n
g
: 


B
e
a


u
fo


rt
 C


o
u
n


ty
 D


N
A


 
L
a
b
o
ra


to
ry


 A
d
d
it
io


n
  


O
w


n
e
r’


s
 #


: 
IF


B
 0


5
2
9


2
0
E


 


O
w


n
e
r:


 
B


e
a


u
fo


rt
 C


o
u
n


ty
, 
S


o
u
th


 C
a


ro
lin


a
 


C
o


n
tr


a
c


to
r’


s
 #


: 
C


W
3


4
1
8


4
5


 


C
o


n
tr


a
c


to
r:


 
C


lo
u


d
 C


M
, 
L


L
C


. 
 


 


 


N
o
. 


S
u
b


m
it
ta


l 
/ 
S


h
o
p


 
D


ra
w


in
g


 


C
o


n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


c
h


e
d


u
le


d
 


S
ta


rt
 D


a
te


 


D
a
te


 
R


e
c
e
iv


e
d


 
T


o
 


E
n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 


D
u
e


 
F


ro
m


 
E


n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
tu


rn
e


d
 t
o


 
C


o
n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


ta
tu


s
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


0
1
.0


 
D


o
o
rs


, 
F


ra
m


e
s
 &


 
H


a
rd


w
a
re


 
0
3
/1


1
/2


0
2
1


 
1
0
/2


8
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


1
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
0
/2


9
/2


0
2
0


 
R


e
je


c
te


d
 


0
1
.1


 
D


o
o
rs


, 
F


ra
m


e
s
 &


 
H


a
rd


w
a
re


 
0
3
/1


1
/2


0
2
1


 
1
0
/2


9
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


2
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


1
/2


0
2
0


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


0
2
.0


 
T


o
ile


t 
A


c
c
e
s
s
o
ri
e
s
 


0
3
/2


5
/2


0
2
1


 
1
0
/2


8
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


1
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
0
/2


9
/2


0
2
0


 
R


e
je


c
te


d
 


0
2
.1


 
T


o
ile


t 
A


c
c
e
s
s
o
ri
e
s
 


0
3
/2


5
/2


0
2
1


 
1
0
/2


9
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


2
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/0


3
/2


0
2
0


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


0
3
.0


 
C


o
rn


e
r 


G
u
a
rd


s
 


0
3
/2


6
/2


0
2
1


 
1
0
/2


8
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


1
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
0
/2


9
/2


0
2
0


 
R


e
je


c
te


d
 


0
3
.1


 
C


o
rn


e
r 


G
u
a
rd


s
 


0
3
/2


6
/2


0
2
1


 
1
0
/2


9
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


2
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/0


3
/2


0
2
0


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


0
4
.0


 
R


o
o
f 
T


ru
s
s
 


- 
1
1
/0


4
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


8
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


1
/2


0
2
0


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 







 
 


P
a
g


e
 2


 o
f 
8


 


S
U


B
M


IT
T


A
L
 L


O
G


 


N
o
. 


S
u
b


m
it
ta


l 
/ 
S


h
o
p


 
D


ra
w


in
g


 


C
o


n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


c
h


e
d


u
le


d
 


S
ta


rt
 D


a
te


 


D
a
te


 
R


e
c
e
iv


e
d


 
T


o
 


E
n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 


D
u
e


 
F


ro
m


 
E


n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
tu


rn
e


d
 t
o


 
C


o
n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


ta
tu


s
 


0
4
.1


 
R


o
o
f 
T


ru
s
s
 


- 
1
1
/1


3
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/2


7
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


7
/2


0
2
0


 
N


o
 


E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 


N
o
te


d
 


0
5
.0


 
F


lo
o
r 


T
ru


s
s
 


- 
1
1
/0


4
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


8
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


1
/2


0
2
0


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


0
5
.1


 
F


lo
o
r 


T
ru


s
s
 R


e
-


S
u
b


m
it
ta


l 
- 


1
1
/1


3
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/2


7
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


7
/2


0
2
0


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


0
6
.0


 
S


c
h
e
d


u
le


 o
f 


V
a


lu
e
s
 


- 
1
1
/0


4
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


8
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/0


9
/2


0
2
0


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


0
6
.1


 
S


c
h
e
d


u
le


 o
f 


V
a


lu
e
s
 


- 
1
2
/1


0
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
2
/2


4
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
2
/1


7
/2


0
2
0


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


0
6
.2


 
S


c
h
e
d


u
le


 o
f 


V
a


lu
e
s
 


- 
1
2
/2


2
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


0
1
/0


5
/2


0
2
1


 
N


A
 


1
2
/2


2
/2


0
2
0


 
N


o
 


E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 


N
o
te


d
 


0
7
.0


 
E


m
e
rg


e
n
c
y
 C


o
n
ta


c
t 
L


is
t 


- 
1
1
/0


4
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


8
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/0


9
/2


0
2
0


 
N


o
 


E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 


N
o
te


d
 


0
8
.0


0
 


S
c
h
e
d


u
le


 
- 


1
1
/0


4
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/1


8
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
1
/0


9
/2


0
2
0


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


0
8
.1


 
S


c
h
e
d


u
le


 
- 


1
2
/1


4
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
2
/2


8
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
2
/1


7
/2


0
2
0


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 







 
 


P
a
g


e
 3


 o
f 
8


 


S
U


B
M


IT
T


A
L
 L


O
G


 


N
o
. 


S
u
b


m
it
ta


l 
/ 
S


h
o
p


 
D


ra
w


in
g


 


C
o


n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


c
h


e
d


u
le


d
 


S
ta


rt
 D


a
te


 


D
a
te


 
R


e
c
e
iv


e
d


 
T


o
 


E
n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 


D
u
e


 
F


ro
m


 
E


n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
tu


rn
e


d
 t
o


 
C


o
n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


ta
tu


s
 


0
9
.0


 
C


a
s
e
w


o
rk


 a
n


d
 


H
a
rd


w
a
re


 
0
3
/2


5
/2


0
2
1


 
1
1
/1


7
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
2
/0


1
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
2
/1


0
/2


0
2
0


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


0
9
.1


 
C


a
s
e
w


o
rk


 a
n


d
 


H
a
rd


w
a
re


 
0
3
/2


5
/2


0
2
1


 
1
2
/0


3
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
2
/1


7
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


0
1
/0


7
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


0
9
.1


R
1


 
C


a
s
e
w


o
rk


 a
n


d
 


H
a
rd


w
a
re


 
0
3
/2


5
/2


0
2
1


 
0
2
/0


1
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
2
/1


5
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
2
/1


1
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


0
9
.2


 
C


a
s
e
w


o
rk


 a
n


d
 


H
a
rd


w
a
re


 
0
3
/2


5
/2


0
2
1


 
0
4
/1


2
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
4
/2


6
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
4
/1


2
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
je


c
te


d
 


0
9
.3


 
C


a
s
e
w


o
rk


 a
n


d
 


H
a
rd


w
a
re


 
0
3
/2


5
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


1
0
.0


 
S


id
e
lit


e
 F


ra
m


e
 a


n
d


 D
o


o
r 


E
le


v
a


ti
o


n
 


0
3
/1


1
/2


0
2
1


 
1
1
/1


7
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
2
/0


1
/2


0
2
0


 
N


A
 


1
2
/0


9
/2


0
2
0


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


1
1


.0
 


N
o


t 
U


s
e
d


 –
 S


E
E


 S
U


B
 0


9
 


1
2
.0


 
P


lu
m


b
in


g
 F


ix
tu


re
s
 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
1
2
/2


9
/2


0
2
0


 
0
1
/0


4
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


2
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/2


7
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/2


8
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


1
2
.1


 
P


lu
m


b
in


g
 F


ix
tu


re
s
 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


1
3
.1


 
H


V
A


C
 E


q
u


ip
m


e
n
t-


 S
p
lit


 
S


y
s
te


m
 H


e
a
t 


P
u


m
p
 


(O
u
td


o
o
r 


U
n
it
) 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
1
2
/3


0
/2


0
2
0


 
0
1
/0


4
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


3
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/0


6
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/0


6
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 







 
 


P
a
g


e
 4


 o
f 
8


 


S
U


B
M


IT
T


A
L
 L


O
G


 


N
o
. 


S
u
b


m
it
ta


l 
/ 
S


h
o
p


 
D


ra
w


in
g


 


C
o


n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


c
h


e
d


u
le


d
 


S
ta


rt
 D


a
te


 


D
a
te


 
R


e
c
e
iv


e
d


 
T


o
 


E
n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 


D
u
e


 
F


ro
m


 
E


n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
tu


rn
e


d
 t
o


 
C


o
n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


ta
tu


s
 


1
3
.1


R
 


H
V


A
C


 E
q
u


ip
m


e
n
t-


 S
p
lit


 
S


y
s
te


m
 H


e
a
t 


P
u


m
p
 


(O
u
td


o
o
r 


U
n
it
) 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


2
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


2
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/2


6
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


5
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


8
/2


0
2
1


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


1
3
.2


 


H
V


A
C


 E
q
u


ip
m


e
n
t 
–
 


V
a
ri


a
b
le


 S
p
e


e
d
 


C
o
n
v
e
rt


ib
le


 A
ir
 H


a
n
d
le


r 
(I


n
d
o
o
r 


U
n
it
) 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
1
2
/3


0
/2


0
2
0


 
0
1
/0


4
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


3
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/0


6
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/0


6
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


1
3
.2


R
 


H
V


A
C


 E
q
u


ip
m


e
n
t 
–
 


V
a
ri


a
b
le


 S
p
e


e
d
 


C
o
n
v
e
rt


ib
le


 A
ir
 H


a
n
d
le


r 
(I


n
d
o
o
r 


U
n
it
) 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


2
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


2
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/2


6
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


5
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


8
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


1
3
.2


R
1


 


H
V


A
C


 E
q
u


ip
m


e
n
t 
–
 


V
a
ri


a
b
le


 S
p
e


e
d
 


C
o
n
v
e
rt


ib
le


 A
ir
 H


a
n
d
le


r 
(I


n
d
o
o
r 


U
n
it
) 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/2


2
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/2


2
/2


0
2
1


 
0
2
/0


5
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/2


6
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/2


6
/2


0
2
1


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


1
3
.3


 
H


V
A


C
 E


q
u


ip
m


e
n
t 


- 
C


o
n
tr


o
ls


 
0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
1
2
/3


0
/2


0
2
0


 
0
1
/0


4
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


3
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/0


6
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/0


6
/2


0
2
1


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


1
4
.0


 


E
le


c
tr


ic
a
l 
–
 


P
a
n


e
lb


o
a
rd


s
, 


S
a
fe


ty
 &


 
D


is
c
o
n
n
e
c
t 


S
w


it
c
h
e
s
, 


L
ig


h
ti
n
g


 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
1
2
/2


8
/2


0
2
0


 
 


 
 


1
2
/2


8
/2


0
2
0


 
R


e
je


c
te


d
 


1
4
.1


R
1


 
E


le
c
tr


ic
a
l 
–
 


P
a
n


e
lb


o
a
rd


s
, 


S
a
fe


ty
 &


 
D


is
c
o
n
n
e
c
t 


S
w


it
c
h
e
s
 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
1
2
/3


0
/2


0
2
0


 
0
1
/0


4
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


3
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/0


6
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/0


7
/2


0
2
1


 
N


o
 


E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 


N
o
te


d
 


1
4
.2


R
1


 
E


le
c
tr


ic
a
l 
–
 L


ig
h
ti
n


g
 a


n
d
 


S
w


it
c
h


e
s
 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
1
2
/3


0
/2


0
2
0


 
0
1
/0


4
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/1


3
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/0


6
/2


0
2
1


 
0
1
/0


7
/2


0
2
1


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 







 
 


P
a
g


e
 5


 o
f 
8


 


S
U


B
M


IT
T


A
L
 L


O
G


 


N
o
. 


S
u
b


m
it
ta


l 
/ 
S


h
o
p


 
D


ra
w


in
g


 


C
o


n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


c
h


e
d


u
le


d
 


S
ta


rt
 D


a
te


 


D
a
te


 
R


e
c
e
iv


e
d


 
T


o
 


E
n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 


D
u
e


 
F


ro
m


 
E


n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
tu


rn
e


d
 t
o


 
C


o
n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


ta
tu


s
 


1
5
.0


 
N


o
t 


U
s
e
d


 


1
6
.0


 
S


ta
n


d
in


g
 S


e
a


m
 M


e
ta


l 
R


o
o
f 


0
3
/1


0
/2


0
2
1


 
0
2
/0


1
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
2
/1


5
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
2
/1


2
/2


0
2
1


 
0
2
/2


2
/2


0
2
1
 (


M
a
te


ri
a
l 


S
a
m


p
le


s
) 


R
e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


1
6
.1


 
S


ta
n


d
in


g
 S


e
a


m
 M


e
ta


l 
R


o
o
f 


0
3
/1


0
/2


0
2
1


 
0
2
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/0


9
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
2
/2


4
/2


0
2
1


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


1
7
.0


 
V


in
y
l 
W


in
d
o
w


s
 


- 
0
2
/0


1
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
2
/1


5
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
2
/0


4
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


1
7
.1


 
V


in
y
l 
W


in
d
o
w


s
 


- 
0
2
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/0


9
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
2
/2


4
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


1
7
.2


 
V


in
y
l 
W


in
d
o
w


s
 


- 
0
3
/0


4
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/1


8
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/0


4
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
je


c
te


d
 


1
7
.3


 
V


in
y
l 
W


in
d
o
w


s
 


- 
0
4
/0


9
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
4
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
4
/0


9
/2


0
2
1


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


1
8
.0


 
E


x
p
a
n
s
io


n
 J


o
in


t 
0
3
/1


6
/2


0
2
1


 
0
2
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/0


9
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
2
/2


4
/2


0
2
1


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


1
9


.0
 


A
s
p
h
a


lt
 P


a
v
in


g
 


C
o
n
c
re


te
 S


id
e
w


a
lk


s
, 


C
u
rb


in
g
 a


n
d
 D


ri
v
e
w


a
y
 


C
o
n
c
re


te
 M


ix
 


0
3
/1


0
/2


0
2
1


 
0
2
/2


5
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/1


1
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/0


5
/2


0
2
1


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 







 
 


P
a
g


e
 6


 o
f 
8


 


S
U


B
M


IT
T


A
L
 L


O
G


 


N
o
. 


S
u
b


m
it
ta


l 
/ 
S


h
o
p


 
D


ra
w


in
g


 


C
o


n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


c
h


e
d


u
le


d
 


S
ta


rt
 D


a
te


 


D
a
te


 
R


e
c
e
iv


e
d


 
T


o
 


E
n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 


D
u
e


 
F


ro
m


 
E


n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
tu


rn
e


d
 t
o


 
C


o
n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


ta
tu


s
 


2
0


.0
 


E
P


D
M


 R
o


o
f 


0
3
/1


0
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/0


2
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/1


6
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/0


2
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


2
0
.1


 
E


P
D


M
 R


o
o
f 


0
3
/1


0
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


2
1
.0


 
M


o
is


tu
re


 a
n


d
 A


ir
 


B
a
rr


ie
rs


 
0
2
/2


6
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/0


2
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/1


6
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/0


2
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


2
1
.1


 
M


o
is


tu
re


 a
n


d
 A


ir
 


B
a
rr


ie
rs


 
0
2
/2


6
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


2
2
.0


 
F


ir
e
 A


la
rm


 
0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/0


3
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/0


4
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/1


7
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/0


8
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/2


4
/2


0
2
1


 
N


o
 


E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 


N
o
te


d
 


2
3
.0


 
In


s
u
la


ti
o


n
 (


T
h
e
rm


a
l 
&


 
A


c
o
u
s
ti
c
a


l)
 


0
3
/1


8
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/0


3
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/1


7
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


2
3
.1


 
In


s
u
la


ti
o


n
 (


T
h
e
rm


a
l 
&


 
A


c
o
u
s
ti
c
a


l)
 


0
3
/1


8
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/2


2
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
4
/0


5
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/2


5
/2


0
2
1


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


2
4
.0


 
P


a
v
e
m


e
n
t 


M
a
rk


in
g


 
0
3
/0


8
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/0


4
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/1


8
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/0


4
/2


0
2
1


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


2
5
.0


 
P


a
in


t 
0
3
/1


7
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/0


5
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/1


9
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/0


5
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


2
5
.1


 
P


a
in


t 
0
3
/1


7
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


2
6
.0


 
L
u
x
u
ry


 V
in


y
l 
T


ile
 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/0


5
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/1


9
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/0


5
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
je


c
te


d
 







 
 


P
a
g


e
 7


 o
f 
8


 


S
U


B
M


IT
T


A
L
 L


O
G


 


N
o
. 


S
u
b


m
it
ta


l 
/ 
S


h
o
p


 
D


ra
w


in
g


 


C
o


n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


c
h


e
d


u
le


d
 


S
ta


rt
 D


a
te


 


D
a
te


 
R


e
c
e
iv


e
d


 
T


o
 


E
n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 


D
u
e


 
F


ro
m


 
E


n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
tu


rn
e


d
 t
o


 
C


o
n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


ta
tu


s
 


2
6
.1


 
L
u
x
u
ry


 V
in


y
l 
T


ile
 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


2
7
.0


 
B


ro
a
d


lo
o
m


 C
a
rp


e
t 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/0


5
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/1


9
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/1


7
/2


0
2
1


 
R


e
v
is


e
 


a
n
d
 


R
e
s
u
b
m


it
 


2
7
.1


 
B


ro
a
d


lo
o
m


 C
a
rp


e
t 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


2
8
.0


 
R


u
b
b


e
r 


B
a
s
e


 
0
3
/2


6
/2


0
2
1


 
0
3
/0


5
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/1


9
/2


0
2
1


 
 


0
3
/1


7
/2


0
2
1


 
A


p
p
ro


v
e


d
 


a
s
 N


o
te


d
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


**
 


F
o
u
n
d


a
ti
o
n
 C


o
n
c
re


te
 


M
ix


 
W


o
rk


 
C


o
m


p
le


te
 


S
u


b
m


it
ta


ls
 w


a
iv


e
d


 d
u


e
 t


o
 w


o
rk


 c
o
m


p
le


te
 p


ri
o


r 
to


 s
u
b


m
it
ta


l 
re


v
ie


w
 a


n
d


 a
p
p


ro
v
a


l 
a


n
d


 t
h


e
 p


a
s
s
 o


f 
th


ir
d


-p
a


rt
y
 S


p
e


c
ia


l 
In


s
p


e
c
ti
o
n
s
  


**
 


M
a
s
o
n
ry


 R
e


b
a
r 


W
o


rk
 


C
o


m
p


le
te


 


**
 


C
M


U
 G


ro
u
t 


M
ix


 D
e
s
ig


n
 


W
o


rk
 


C
o


m
p


le
te


 


**
 


R
o
u
g


h
 C


a
rp


e
n
tr


y
 


W
o


rk
 


C
o


m
p


le
te


 


 
F


la
s
h
in


g
 &


 S
h
e


e
t 
M


e
ta


l 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
R


o
o
f 
C


o
p


in
g
s
 


0
3
/1


0
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
O


p
e
n
in


g
 P


ro
te


c
ti
o
n


 
0
3
/1


8
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
G


la
z
in


g
 


0
3
/1


0
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 







 
 


P
a
g


e
 8


 o
f 
8


 


S
U


B
M


IT
T


A
L
 L


O
G


 


N
o
. 


S
u
b


m
it
ta


l 
/ 
S


h
o
p


 
D


ra
w


in
g


 


C
o


n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


c
h


e
d


u
le


d
 


S
ta


rt
 D


a
te


 


D
a
te


 
R


e
c
e
iv


e
d


 
T


o
 


E
n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 


D
u
e


 
F


ro
m


 
E


n
g


in
e
e
r 


R
e
tu


rn
e


d
 t
o


 
C


o
n
tr


a
c
to


r 
S


ta
tu


s
 


 
S


u
b
s
tr


a
te


 P
re


p
a
ra


ti
o


n
 


fo
r 


F
lo


o
r 


F
in


is
h
e
s
 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
E


ro
s
io


n
 a


n
d
 S


e
d


im
e
n
t 


C
o
n
tr


o
ls


 
W


o
rk


 
C


o
m


p
le


te
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
P


lu
m


b
in


g
 p


ip
in


g
, 


c
o
n
n
e
c
to


rs
, 
a


n
d
 


h
a
n
g


e
rs


 
0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
H


V
A


C
 D


u
c
t 


&
 P


ip
in


g
 


0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
H


V
A


C
 S


e
is


m
ic


 C
o
n


tr
o
ls


 
0
3
/2


3
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
S


e
e


d
in


g
 


0
3
/0


8
/2


0
2
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


E
n
d
 o


f 
S


u
b


m
it
ta


l 
L
o


g
 









mailto:dan@beaufortdesignbuild.com
mailto:jcampbell@bcgov.net
mailto:adam@beaufortdesignbuild.com


 

From: dan@beaufortdesignbuild.com <dan@beaufortdesignbuild.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 21, 2021 10:59 AM
To: 'Campbell, John' <jcampbell@bcgov.net>
Subject: DNA Lab Add Services
 
Good morning Wes.
Attached is our request for additional fee on the DNA Lab.  It is based on our loss to date and
projected through the May 31 completion date.
Please let me know of any questions or concerns.  I would like to get this approved as soon as is
reasonably possible – we are in a considerable hole.
Thanks for your consideration.
Dan
 
Daniel C. Saltrick, AIA
Beaufort Design Build, LLC
2 Fire Station Lane
Seabrook, South Carolina 29940
O: 843-466-3664
C: 704-618-1302
 

 

13

Item 9.



 

Beaufort Design Build, LLC  
2 Fire Station Lane, Seabrook, South Carolina 29940 

 (843) 466-3664 
 

 
 
 
 
 

April 21, 2021 

Mr. J. Wes Campbell 
Beaufort County Facility Management 
120 Shanklin Road 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29906 
jcampbell@bcgov.net 

Re:  Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office 
 DNA Laboratory Addition 
 Change Order Proposal 002 

Wes: 

With regard to the above referenced Project and as discussed, delays to the Contractor’s Construction 
Schedule, excessive review of submittals, coordination for correction of deficient and/or non-
conforming work and multiple meetings to discuss the Contractor’s failure to perform in accordance 
with the Contract and Contract Documents have resulted in Beaufort Design Build’s expenditure of a 
considerable amount of time and money that are above and beyond what was allowed for in our 
original Fee Proposal.  A brief summary of work that has been completed outside of our original scope 
follows. 

• All of the Contractor’s submittals have required at least two (2) reviews before an approval 
could be issued.  Many have required as many as three (3) or four (4) reviews.  For example, 
the Schedule of Values required three (3) reviews and Casework and Hardware has been 
submitted five (5) times and is still not approved. 

• Items such as vinyl windows, ductwork, moisture and air barriers and plumbing piping have 
been installed without a submittal having ever been made.  With regard to the windows, 
because the installed units did not meet the requirements of the drawings or specifications our 
office spent a considerable amount of time researching products to see if the situation could 
be rectified without having to replace them.  Ultimately, we determined that because the 
installed units were intended for renovation and not new construction they needed to be 
replaced. 

• Floor joists were not installed in accordance with the drawings and specifications or the 
Contractor’s shop drawings.  This issue was brought to the Contractor’s attention in November 
2020 and was not resolved until March 2021.  In the meantime, our office  coordinated with the 
Contractor, the Structural Engineer and the Pre-Engineered Joist Manufacturer to look for 
solutions. 

• On multiple weeks, our office had to be on-site two (2) days rather than one (1) to compensate 
for the Contractor not being ready on the first visit to discuss work that, in accordance with the 
Contractor’s Schedule, should have been in place but was not. 

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL for: 
PO 20200916-00 

 
 

14

Item 9.



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

• Since the start of construction, the Contractor has had three (3) different project managers and 
two (2) different site superintendents.  As you know, each change in personnel has required 
that time be spent bringing the new person up to speed on open issues and submittals. 

• Two on-site meetings and one Zoom meeting were held with the Contractor to discuss 
personnel issues, failure to perform in accordance with the Contract Documents, schedule 
delays and other deficiencies.  In addition to the time spent in these meetings, each required 
time to prepare an agenda, update logs and phone calls with you and Andrea ahead of the 
meeting. 

• Generally speaking, our office has been required to spend a considerable amount of time 
sending emails and making phone calls to follow up on requests for proposal, supplemental 
instructions, issues log items and other tasks that are part of our construction period services 
scope of work. 

• The original April 03, 2021 Contract Completion Date has been changed to May 31, 2021 (58 
additional days).  As discussed this delay is the result of the issues outlined above.   

At this time, we are requesting that our Purchase Order (20200916-00) be increased by twenty-three 
thousand, four hundred dollars and zero cents ($23,400.00).  This request covers all additional work to 
date as well as costs projected through the current Construction Completion date of May 31, 2021.  
Please note that our projected cost is based on our monthly expenditures to date as well as 
anticipated costs based on the Action Items and Submittal Logs reviewed in our April 14, 2021 
progress meeting.  These documents are attached. 

Of this amount, eighteen thousand dollars will be billed immediately after approval of this Request and 
the balance will be billed in two parts:  $2,700.00 on or about May 31, 2021 and $2,700.00 after 
delivery of closeout documents. 

Lastly, I want to mention that Beaufort Design Build worked very hard to bring this Project in under 
budget on bid day and we have been working throughout the construction period to keep it under 
budget.  While we regret that the Project is not on schedule, a review of our meeting notes, issues log 
and other logs and paperwork shows that we have worked diligently to manage the project as best we 
could given the circumstances.  We hope that you are understanding of our position and this request. 

If you have any questions or need additional information regarding this proposal, please don’t hesitate 
to call or write. 

Sincerely, 
 

Beaufort Design Build, LLC 
 
 

 

Daniel C. Saltrick, AIA 

 
Copy: Adam Biery, Beaufort Design Build 
 Carmen Morrison, Beaufort Design Build 

Attachment:  Beaufort County Purchase Order PO 20200916-00  

15

Item 9.



B
e

a
u

fo
rt

 D
e

s
ig

n
 B

u
ild

, 
L

L
C

 

2
 F

ir
e

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 L

a
n

e
, 
S

e
a

b
ro

o
k
, 
S

o
u

th
 C

a
ro

lin
a

 2
9

9
4
0

  
• 

 8
4

3
-4

6
6

-3
6
6

4
  
• 

 w
w

w
.b

e
a

u
fo

rt
d

e
s
ig

n
b
u

ild
.c

o
m

 

 P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 

3
 

 

 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 
Is

s
u

e
 D

a
te

: 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

1
0
, 

2
0

2
0

 
P

re
p

a
re

d
 B

y
: 

A
d
a

m
 B

ie
ry

  

R
e

v
is

io
n

 (
P

ri
n

t)
 D

a
te

: 
A

p
ri

l 
1

4
, 
2

0
2
1

  
B

D
B

 #
: 

1
9
0
4

4
.0

0
 

P
ro

je
c
t:

 
B

e
a

u
fo

rt
 C

o
u
n

ty
 D

N
A

 L
a

b
o

ra
to

ry
 A

d
d

it
io

n
  

O
w

n
e
r’

s
 #

: 
0
5
2
9

2
0

E
 

O
w

n
e
r:

 
B

e
a

u
fo

rt
 C

o
u
n

ty
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

to
r’

s
 #

: 
T

B
D

 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

to
r:

 
C

lo
u

d
 C

M
, 
L

L
C

. 
 

 

 

It
e

m
 #

 
D

at
e

 
N

o
te

d
 

D
at

e
 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 

Is
su

e
 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

B
y 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
A

ct
io

n
 T

ak
e

n
 

V
e

ri
fi

e
d

 
B

y 
D

at
e

 
V

e
ri

fi
e

d
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
Y

e
s/

N
o

 
 

0
1

. 
0

8
/2

5
/2

0
 

0
9

/0
4

/2
0

 
B

D
B

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
Su

b
m

it
ta

l L
o

g 
w

it
h

 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 S
u

b
m

it
ta

ls
  

A
rc

h
 

A
rc

h
 

A
tt

ac
h

ed
 t

o
 P

re
-C

o
n

 
M

ee
ti

n
g 

N
o

te
s 

A
D

B
 

0
8

/3
1

/2
0

 
Ye

s 

0
2

. 
0

8
/2

5
/2

0
 

A
SA

P
 

Su
b

co
n

tr
ac

to
rs

 L
is

t 
is

 r
e

q
u

ir
ed

 f
o

r 
P

er
m

it
ti

n
g 

 
A

rc
h

 
G

C
 

C
o

n
tr

ac
to

r 
Su

b
m

it
te

d
 li

st
 

to
 C

it
y 

o
f 

B
ea

u
fo

rt
 

A
D

B
 

- 
Ye

s 

0
3

. 
0

8
/2

5
/2

0
 

 
C

o
u

n
ty

’s
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
ac

ce
ss

 c
o

n
tr

o
l, 

se
cu

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 t

e
le

co
m

 a
re

 n
ee

d
e

d
 

O
w

n
er

 
O

w
n

er
 

C
o

u
n

ty
’s

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 

w
er

e 
p

ro
vi

d
e

d
, R

FP
 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 t

o
 G

C
 

A
D

B
 

1
2

/0
2

/2
0

 
Ye

s 

0
4

. 
0

8
/2

5
/2

0
 

P
ri

o
r 

to
 

st
ar

t 
St

ag
in

g 
an

d
 la

yd
o

w
n

 p
la

n
 n

ee
d

 t
o

 b
e 

su
b

m
it

te
d

 
A

rc
h

 
G

C
 

Si
te

 v
is

it
 c

o
n

d
u

ct
e

d
 a

n
d

 
ar

ea
s 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 

A
D

B
 

1
0

/2
1

/2
0

 
Ye

s 

0
5

. 
0

8
/2

5
/2

0
 

P
ri

o
r 

to
 

fi
rs

t 
P

ay
 

A
p

p
 

Sc
h

ed
u

le
 o

f 
V

al
u

es
 a

n
d

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 t

o
 b

e 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y 

A
rc

h
it

ec
t 

A
rc

h
 

G
C

 
It

em
s 

w
er

e 
su

b
m

it
te

d
, 

n
o

t 
ap

p
ro

ve
d

 
A

D
B

 
- 

Ye
s 

0
6

. 
1

1
/1

1
/2

0
 

A
SA

P
 

N
ee

d
 k

ey
in

g 
sc

h
e

d
u

le
 f

o
r 

d
o

o
r 

h
ar

d
w

ar
e

 
A

rc
h

 
O

w
n

er
 

K
ey

 a
s 

p
er

 S
p

ec
s 

A
D

B
 

0
1

/2
0

/2
1

 
Ye

s 

0
7

. 
1

1
/0

9
/2

0
 

A
SA

P
 

So
il 

b
ea

ri
n

g 
/ 

co
m

p
ac

ti
o

n
 t

es
ti

n
g 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 

A
rc

h
 

G
C

 
Te

st
 c

o
n

d
u

ct
ed

 a
n

d
 

p
as

se
d

 
A

D
B

 
1

1
/1

6
/2

0
 

Ye
s 

0
8

. 
1

1
/0

9
/2

0
 

A
SA

P
 

C
o

n
cr

et
e 

st
re

n
gt

h
 t

es
ti

n
g 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 
A

rc
h

 
O

w
n

er
 

Fi
rs

t 
te

st
 c

o
n

d
u

ct
ed

; 
se

co
n

d
 t

es
t 

sc
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

A
D

B
 

- 
Ye

s 

0
9

. 
1

1
/1

1
/2

0
 

A
SA

P
 

C
o

rn
er

 g
u

ar
d

 c
o

lo
r 

se
le

ct
io

n
 /

 p
e

n
d

in
g 

o
th

er
 in

te
ri

o
r 

se
le

ct
io

n
s 

A
rc

h
 

O
w

n
er

 /
 G

C
 

6
 c

o
lo

r 
o

p
ti

o
n

s,
 p

h
ys

ic
al

 
sa

m
p

le
s,

 h
av

e 
b

e
en

 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

b
y 

G
C

 
A

D
B

 
0

3
/0

3
/2

1
 

Ye
s 

IS
S

U
E

S
 L

O
G

 

16

Item 9.



 

P
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 

3
 

 

It
e

m
 #

 
D

at
e

 
N

o
te

d
 

D
at

e
 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 

Is
su

e
 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

B
y 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
A

ct
io

n
 T

ak
e

n
 

V
e

ri
fi

e
d

 
B

y 
D

at
e

 
V

e
ri

fi
e

d
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
Y

e
s/

N
o

 

1
0

. 
1

1
/1

1
/2

0
 

0
2

/2
6

/2
1

 
R

es
o

lv
e 

fo
r 

st
em

 w
al

l f
in

is
h

 
A

rc
h

 
G

C
 

C
em

en
t 

St
u

cc
o

 o
n

 la
th

 t
o

 
b

e 
in

st
al

le
d

 
A

D
B

 
3

/2
6

/2
1

 
Ye

s 

1
1

. 
1

2
/0

1
/2

0
 

0
2

/2
6

/2
1

 
N

ee
d

 le
tt

er
 f

ro
m

 f
lo

o
r 

jo
is

t 
en

gi
n

ee
r 

fo
r 

la
ck

 o
f 

d
o

u
b

le
d

 jo
is

t 
u

n
d

er
 p

ar
al

le
l w

al
ls

 
A

R
C

H
 

G
C

 
C

o
n

ta
ct

o
r 

to
 in

st
al

l 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 I 

jo
is

t 
se

e 
it

em
 

2
3

 b
el

o
w

 
A

D
B

 
3

/1
8

/2
1

 
Se

e 
It

em
 

2
3

 

1
2

. 
1

2
/2

2
/2

0
 

A
SA

P
 

In
st

al
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

is
si

n
g 

ro
o

f 
o

ve
rh

an
gs

 
A

rc
h

 
G

C
 

O
ve

rh
an

gs
 A

d
d

ed
 

A
D

B
 

0
1

/1
3

/2
1

 
Ye

s 

1
3

. 
1

1
/2

5
/2

0
 

0
2

/2
6

/2
1

 
N

o
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 R

FP
 0

1
, r

es
p

o
n

se
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 
A

rc
h

 
G

C
 

R
es

p
o

n
se

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 
A

D
B

 
0

3
/2

5
/2

1
 

P
ar

ti
al

 

1
4

. 
0

1
/1

3
/2

1
 

A
SA

P
 

Lo
w

er
 H

V
A

C
 c

o
n

d
en

sa
te

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 c

lo
se

r 
to

 g
ra

d
e

 
A

rc
h

 
G

C
 

1
 o

f 
2

 c
o

n
d

en
sa

te
 li

n
es

 
h

av
e 

b
e

en
 lo

w
er

ed
 

A
D

B
 

0
1

/2
5

/2
1

 
P

ar
ti

al
  

1
5

. 
0

1
/1

3
/2

1
 

0
2

/2
4

/2
1

 
W

in
d

o
w

s 
h

av
e 

b
e

en
 in

st
al

le
d

 w
it

h
 o

u
t 

su
b

m
it

ta
l /

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
va

l  
A

rc
h

 
G

C
 

 
 

 
 

1
6

. 
0

1
/1

3
/2

1
 

0
1

/2
9

/2
1

 
Si

te
 t

o
 b

e 
gr

ad
ed

  
O

w
n

er
 

G
C

 
G

ra
d

in
g 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

A
D

B
 

0
2

/1
0

/2
1

 
P

ar
ti

al
 

2
0

. 
0

1
/1

3
/2

1
 

0
2

/2
5

/2
1

 
U

p
d

at
e

d
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 r
eq

u
e

st
e

d
  

O
w

n
er

 
G

C
 

Sc
h

ed
u

le
 p

ro
vi

d
e

d
 

A
D

B
 

0
2

/2
5

/2
1

 
Ye

s 

1
7

. 
0

1
/2

0
/2

1
 

A
SA

P
 

Ex
te

ri
o

r 
tr

im
 in

st
al

le
d

 in
co

rr
ec

tl
y 

 
A

rc
h

 
G

C
 

Ex
t.

 t
ri

m
 c

o
rr

ec
te

d
 

A
D

B
 

0
2

/1
0

/2
1

 
Ye

s 

1
8

. 
0

1
/2

0
/2

1
 

0
3

/0
4

/2
1

 
Ex

p
an

si
o

n
 jo

in
ts

 n
o

t 
in

st
al

le
d

 a
t 

b
u

ild
in

g 
co

n
n

ec
ti

o
n

 
A

rc
h

 
G

C
 

 
 

 
 

1
9

 
0

1
/2

0
/2

1
 

0
2

/1
2

/2
1

 
Li

en
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 f
ro

m
 s

u
p

p
lie

r 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 
O

w
n

er
 

G
C

 
G

C
 p

ro
vi

d
e

d
 

d
o

cu
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
lie

n
 

re
le

as
e

 
A

D
B

 
0

2
/1

1
/2

1
 

Ye
s 

2
0

. 
0

1
/2

0
/2

1
 

0
2

/2
4

/2
1

 
A

ll 
su

b
m

it
ta

ls
 r

e
ga

rd
in

g 
in

te
ri

o
r 

fi
n

is
h

es
 

n
ee

d
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 f
o

r 
fi

n
is

h
 s

el
ec

ti
o

n
s 

(i
n

cl
u

d
e

d
 s

am
p

le
s 

an
d

 c
o

lo
r 

ch
ar

ts
) 

O
w

n
er

 /
 

A
rc

h
 

G
C

 
Se

le
ct

io
n

s 
P

ro
vi

d
e

 
A

D
B

 
0

3
/0

3
/2

1
 

Ye
s 

2
1

. 
0

2
/0

3
/2

1
 

- 
B

ft
. C

o
 IT

 r
eq

u
es

te
d

 f
o

r 
in

st
al

l o
f 

lo
w

 d
at

a 
lin

es
 a

n
d

 b
o

x 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

s 
A

rc
h

 
O

w
n

er
 

B
ft

. C
o

 IT
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
re

p
s 

w
er

e 
o

n
 s

it
e,

 
d

ef
er

re
d

 t
o

 u
se

r 
/ 

Sh
er

if
f’

s 
O

ff
ic

e 

A
D

B
 

0
2

/1
0

/2
1

 
Ye

s 

2
2

. 
0

2
/1

0
/2

1
 

- 
B

ft
. C

o
 t

o
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 S
h

er
if

f’
s 

O
ff

ic
e 

fo
r 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
d

at
a 

d
ro

p
s 

in
 

o
ff

ic
es

  
O

w
n

er
 

G
C

 
Lo

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

d
ro

p
 a

n
d

 
q

u
an

ti
ty

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 b
y 

O
w

n
er

 (
se

e 
R

FP
 0

2
) 

A
D

B
 

0
2

/1
2

/2
1

 
Ye

s 

2
3

. 
0

3
/0

3
/2

0
2

1
 

0
3

/2
4

/2
0

2
1

 
In

st
al

l a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 I-

jo
is

t 
u

n
d

er
 w

al
ls

 
ru

n
n

in
g 

p
ar

al
le

l a
b

o
ve

  
A

rc
h

 
G

C
 

Le
tt

er
 O

b
ta

in
ed

 
A

D
B

 
0

3
/1

8
/2

1
 

Ye
s 

2
4

. 
0

3
/1

0
/2

0
2

1
 

0
3

/1
7

/2
1

 
C

o
ve

r 
H

V
A

C
 s

u
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 r

et
u

rn
 d

u
ct

 
o

p
en

in
gs

 
A

rc
h

 
G

C
 

O
p

en
in

gs
 C

o
ve

re
d

 
A

D
B

 
0

3
/2

4
/2

1
 

Ye
s 

17

Item 9.



 

P
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 

3
 

 

It
e

m
 #

 
D

at
e

 
N

o
te

d
 

D
at

e
 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 

Is
su

e
 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

B
y 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 
P

ar
ty

 
A

ct
io

n
 T

ak
e

n
 

V
e

ri
fi

e
d

 
B

y 
D

at
e

 
V

e
ri

fi
e

d
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
Y

e
s/

N
o

 

2
5

. 
0

3
/1

0
/2

1
 

0
4

/1
4

/2
1

 

A
rc

h
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
ly

 G
C

 w
it

h
 le

tt
er

 r
e

ga
rd

in
g 

su
b

m
it

ta
ls

 w
h

ic
h

 w
er

e 
n

o
t 

su
b

m
it

te
d

 f
o

r 
w

o
rk

 t
h

at
 w

as
 p

re
fo

rm
ed

 a
n

d
 in

sp
ec

te
d

 
b

y 
th

ir
d

 p
ar

ty
 in

sp
ec

ti
o

n
s 

G
C

 
A

rc
h

 
 

 
 

 

2
6

. 
0

3
/1

0
/2

1
 

3
/2

4
/2

1
 

Li
en

 w
ai

ve
rs

 r
e

q
u

ir
ed

 f
o

r 
p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 
P

ay
 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 0

2
 

O
w

n
er

 
G

C
 

 
 

 
 

2
7

. 
0

3
/3

1
/2

1
 

0
4

/0
5

/2
1

 
G

C
 r

eq
u

es
te

d
 C

O
M

C
h

ec
k 

fo
r 

su
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

to
 C

it
y 

o
f 

B
ea

u
fo

rt
  

G
C

 
A

rc
h

 
C

O
M

C
h

ec
k 

re
p

o
rt

 s
en

t 
to

 G
C

 
A

D
B

 
0

4
/0

6
/2

1
 

Ye
s 

2
8

. 
0

4
/0

7
/2

1
 

0
4

/1
4

/2
1

 
G

C
 r

eq
u

es
t 

em
ai

l f
ro

m
 O

w
n

er
 f

o
rg

o
in

g 
EP

D
M

 r
o

o
f 

ti
e-

in
 w

ar
ra

n
ty

 
G

C
 

O
w

n
er

 
Em

ai
l S

en
t 

to
 G

C
 b

y 
O

w
n

er
 

A
D

B
 

0
4

/0
7

/2
1

 
Ye

s 

2
9

. 
0

4
/0

7
/2

1
 

0
4

/0
8

/2
1

 
G

C
 n

ee
d

s 
ex

ec
u

te
d

 C
h

an
ge

 R
e

q
u

es
t 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 (
C

R
P

) 
(f

o
r 

so
u

n
d

 b
at

 &
 a

cc
es

s 
co

n
tr

o
l 

G
C

 
O

w
n

er
 /

A
rc

h
 

C
R

P
 s

en
t 

 
A

D
B

 
0

4
/0

8
/2

1
 

Ye
s 

3
0

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
1

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
2

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

En
d

 o
f 

Is
su

es
 L

o
g 

18

Item 9.



 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

 o
f 
8

 

S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L
 L

O
G

 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 
Is

s
u

e
 D

a
te

: 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
8
, 

2
0

2
0

 
P

re
p

a
re

d
 B

y
: 

A
d
a

m
 D

. 
B

ie
ry

 

R
e

v
is

io
n

 (
P

ri
n

t)
 D

a
te

: 
A

p
ri

l 
1

4
, 
2

0
2
1

 
B

D
B

 #
: 

1
9
0
4

4
.0

0
 

P
ro

je
c
t:

 
B

e
a

u
fo

rt
 C

o
u
n

ty
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
: 

B
e
a

u
fo

rt
 C

o
u
n

ty
 D

N
A

 
L
a
b
o
ra

to
ry

 A
d
d
it
io

n
  

O
w

n
e
r’

s
 #

: 
IF

B
 0

5
2
9

2
0
E

 

O
w

n
e
r:

 
B

e
a

u
fo

rt
 C

o
u
n

ty
, 
S

o
u
th

 C
a

ro
lin

a
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

to
r’

s
 #

: 
C

W
3

4
1
8

4
5

 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

to
r:

 
C

lo
u

d
 C

M
, 
L

L
C

. 
 

 

 

N
o
. 

S
u
b

m
it
ta

l 
/ 
S

h
o
p

 
D

ra
w

in
g

 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 

D
a
te

 
R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
T

o
 

E
n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
u
e

 
F

ro
m

 
E

n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
tu

rn
e

d
 t
o

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

ta
tu

s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

0
1
.0

 
D

o
o
rs

, 
F

ra
m

e
s
 &

 
H

a
rd

w
a
re

 
0
3
/1

1
/2

0
2
1

 
1
0
/2

8
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

1
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
2
0

 
R

e
je

c
te

d
 

0
1
.1

 
D

o
o
rs

, 
F

ra
m

e
s
 &

 
H

a
rd

w
a
re

 
0
3
/1

1
/2

0
2
1

 
1
0
/2

9
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

2
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

1
/2

0
2
0

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

0
2
.0

 
T

o
ile

t 
A

c
c
e
s
s
o
ri
e
s
 

0
3
/2

5
/2

0
2
1

 
1
0
/2

8
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

1
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
2
0

 
R

e
je

c
te

d
 

0
2
.1

 
T

o
ile

t 
A

c
c
e
s
s
o
ri
e
s
 

0
3
/2

5
/2

0
2
1

 
1
0
/2

9
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

2
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/0

3
/2

0
2
0

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

0
3
.0

 
C

o
rn

e
r 

G
u
a
rd

s
 

0
3
/2

6
/2

0
2
1

 
1
0
/2

8
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

1
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
2
0

 
R

e
je

c
te

d
 

0
3
.1

 
C

o
rn

e
r 

G
u
a
rd

s
 

0
3
/2

6
/2

0
2
1

 
1
0
/2

9
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

2
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/0

3
/2

0
2
0

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

0
4
.0

 
R

o
o
f 
T

ru
s
s
 

- 
1
1
/0

4
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

8
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

1
/2

0
2
0

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

19

Item 9.



 
 

P
a
g

e
 2

 o
f 
8

 

S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L
 L

O
G

 

N
o
. 

S
u
b

m
it
ta

l 
/ 
S

h
o
p

 
D

ra
w

in
g

 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 

D
a
te

 
R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
T

o
 

E
n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
u
e

 
F

ro
m

 
E

n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
tu

rn
e

d
 t
o

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

ta
tu

s
 

0
4
.1

 
R

o
o
f 
T

ru
s
s
 

- 
1
1
/1

3
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/2

7
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

7
/2

0
2
0

 
N

o
 

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 

N
o
te

d
 

0
5
.0

 
F

lo
o
r 

T
ru

s
s
 

- 
1
1
/0

4
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

8
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

1
/2

0
2
0

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

0
5
.1

 
F

lo
o
r 

T
ru

s
s
 R

e
-

S
u
b

m
it
ta

l 
- 

1
1
/1

3
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/2

7
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

7
/2

0
2
0

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

0
6
.0

 
S

c
h
e
d

u
le

 o
f 

V
a

lu
e
s
 

- 
1
1
/0

4
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

8
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/0

9
/2

0
2
0

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

0
6
.1

 
S

c
h
e
d

u
le

 o
f 

V
a

lu
e
s
 

- 
1
2
/1

0
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
2
/2

4
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
2
/1

7
/2

0
2
0

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

0
6
.2

 
S

c
h
e
d

u
le

 o
f 

V
a

lu
e
s
 

- 
1
2
/2

2
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

0
1
/0

5
/2

0
2
1

 
N

A
 

1
2
/2

2
/2

0
2
0

 
N

o
 

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 

N
o
te

d
 

0
7
.0

 
E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
L

is
t 

- 
1
1
/0

4
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

8
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/0

9
/2

0
2
0

 
N

o
 

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 

N
o
te

d
 

0
8
.0

0
 

S
c
h
e
d

u
le

 
- 

1
1
/0

4
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/1

8
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
1
/0

9
/2

0
2
0

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

0
8
.1

 
S

c
h
e
d

u
le

 
- 

1
2
/1

4
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
2
/2

8
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
2
/1

7
/2

0
2
0

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

20

Item 9.



 
 

P
a
g

e
 3

 o
f 
8

 

S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L
 L

O
G

 

N
o
. 

S
u
b

m
it
ta

l 
/ 
S

h
o
p

 
D

ra
w

in
g

 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 

D
a
te

 
R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
T

o
 

E
n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
u
e

 
F

ro
m

 
E

n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
tu

rn
e

d
 t
o

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

ta
tu

s
 

0
9
.0

 
C

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 

H
a
rd

w
a
re

 
0
3
/2

5
/2

0
2
1

 
1
1
/1

7
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
2
/0

1
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
2
/1

0
/2

0
2
0

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

0
9
.1

 
C

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 

H
a
rd

w
a
re

 
0
3
/2

5
/2

0
2
1

 
1
2
/0

3
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
2
/1

7
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

0
1
/0

7
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

0
9
.1

R
1

 
C

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 

H
a
rd

w
a
re

 
0
3
/2

5
/2

0
2
1

 
0
2
/0

1
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
2
/1

5
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
2
/1

1
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

0
9
.2

 
C

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 

H
a
rd

w
a
re

 
0
3
/2

5
/2

0
2
1

 
0
4
/1

2
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
4
/2

6
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
4
/1

2
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
je

c
te

d
 

0
9
.3

 
C

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 

H
a
rd

w
a
re

 
0
3
/2

5
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1
0
.0

 
S

id
e
lit

e
 F

ra
m

e
 a

n
d

 D
o

o
r 

E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
 

0
3
/1

1
/2

0
2
1

 
1
1
/1

7
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
2
/0

1
/2

0
2
0

 
N

A
 

1
2
/0

9
/2

0
2
0

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

1
1

.0
 

N
o

t 
U

s
e
d

 –
 S

E
E

 S
U

B
 0

9
 

1
2
.0

 
P

lu
m

b
in

g
 F

ix
tu

re
s
 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
1
2
/2

9
/2

0
2
0

 
0
1
/0

4
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

2
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/2

7
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/2

8
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

1
2
.1

 
P

lu
m

b
in

g
 F

ix
tu

re
s
 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1
3
.1

 
H

V
A

C
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n
t-

 S
p
lit

 
S

y
s
te

m
 H

e
a
t 

P
u

m
p
 

(O
u
td

o
o
r 

U
n
it
) 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
1
2
/3

0
/2

0
2
0

 
0
1
/0

4
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

3
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/0

6
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/0

6
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

21

Item 9.



 
 

P
a
g

e
 4

 o
f 
8

 

S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L
 L

O
G

 

N
o
. 

S
u
b

m
it
ta

l 
/ 
S

h
o
p

 
D

ra
w

in
g

 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 

D
a
te

 
R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
T

o
 

E
n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
u
e

 
F

ro
m

 
E

n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
tu

rn
e

d
 t
o

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

ta
tu

s
 

1
3
.1

R
 

H
V

A
C

 E
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t-

 S
p
lit

 
S

y
s
te

m
 H

e
a
t 

P
u

m
p
 

(O
u
td

o
o
r 

U
n
it
) 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

2
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

2
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/2

6
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

5
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

8
/2

0
2
1

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

1
3
.2

 

H
V

A
C

 E
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 
–
 

V
a
ri

a
b
le

 S
p
e

e
d
 

C
o
n
v
e
rt

ib
le

 A
ir
 H

a
n
d
le

r 
(I

n
d
o
o
r 

U
n
it
) 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
1
2
/3

0
/2

0
2
0

 
0
1
/0

4
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

3
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/0

6
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/0

6
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

1
3
.2

R
 

H
V

A
C

 E
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 
–
 

V
a
ri

a
b
le

 S
p
e

e
d
 

C
o
n
v
e
rt

ib
le

 A
ir
 H

a
n
d
le

r 
(I

n
d
o
o
r 

U
n
it
) 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

2
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

2
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/2

6
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

5
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

8
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

1
3
.2

R
1

 

H
V

A
C

 E
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 
–
 

V
a
ri

a
b
le

 S
p
e

e
d
 

C
o
n
v
e
rt

ib
le

 A
ir
 H

a
n
d
le

r 
(I

n
d
o
o
r 

U
n
it
) 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/2

2
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/2

2
/2

0
2
1

 
0
2
/0

5
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/2

6
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/2

6
/2

0
2
1

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

1
3
.3

 
H

V
A

C
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

- 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
1
2
/3

0
/2

0
2
0

 
0
1
/0

4
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

3
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/0

6
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/0

6
/2

0
2
1

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

1
4
.0

 

E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
–
 

P
a
n

e
lb

o
a
rd

s
, 

S
a
fe

ty
 &

 
D

is
c
o
n
n
e
c
t 

S
w

it
c
h
e
s
, 

L
ig

h
ti
n
g

 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
1
2
/2

8
/2

0
2
0

 
 

 
 

1
2
/2

8
/2

0
2
0

 
R

e
je

c
te

d
 

1
4
.1

R
1

 
E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
–
 

P
a
n

e
lb

o
a
rd

s
, 

S
a
fe

ty
 &

 
D

is
c
o
n
n
e
c
t 

S
w

it
c
h
e
s
 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
1
2
/3

0
/2

0
2
0

 
0
1
/0

4
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

3
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/0

6
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/0

7
/2

0
2
1

 
N

o
 

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 

N
o
te

d
 

1
4
.2

R
1

 
E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
–
 L

ig
h
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 

S
w

it
c
h

e
s
 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
1
2
/3

0
/2

0
2
0

 
0
1
/0

4
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/1

3
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/0

6
/2

0
2
1

 
0
1
/0

7
/2

0
2
1

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

22

Item 9.



 
 

P
a
g

e
 5

 o
f 
8

 

S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L
 L

O
G

 

N
o
. 

S
u
b

m
it
ta

l 
/ 
S

h
o
p

 
D

ra
w

in
g

 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 

D
a
te

 
R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
T

o
 

E
n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
u
e

 
F

ro
m

 
E

n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
tu

rn
e

d
 t
o

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

ta
tu

s
 

1
5
.0

 
N

o
t 

U
s
e
d

 

1
6
.0

 
S

ta
n

d
in

g
 S

e
a

m
 M

e
ta

l 
R

o
o
f 

0
3
/1

0
/2

0
2
1

 
0
2
/0

1
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
2
/1

5
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
2
/1

2
/2

0
2
1

 
0
2
/2

2
/2

0
2
1
 (

M
a
te

ri
a
l 

S
a
m

p
le

s
) 

R
e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

1
6
.1

 
S

ta
n

d
in

g
 S

e
a

m
 M

e
ta

l 
R

o
o
f 

0
3
/1

0
/2

0
2
1

 
0
2
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/0

9
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
2
/2

4
/2

0
2
1

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

1
7
.0

 
V

in
y
l 
W

in
d
o
w

s
 

- 
0
2
/0

1
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
2
/1

5
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
2
/0

4
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

1
7
.1

 
V

in
y
l 
W

in
d
o
w

s
 

- 
0
2
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/0

9
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
2
/2

4
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

1
7
.2

 
V

in
y
l 
W

in
d
o
w

s
 

- 
0
3
/0

4
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/1

8
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/0

4
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
je

c
te

d
 

1
7
.3

 
V

in
y
l 
W

in
d
o
w

s
 

- 
0
4
/0

9
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
4
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
4
/0

9
/2

0
2
1

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

1
8
.0

 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 J

o
in

t 
0
3
/1

6
/2

0
2
1

 
0
2
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/0

9
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
2
/2

4
/2

0
2
1

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

1
9

.0
 

A
s
p
h
a

lt
 P

a
v
in

g
 

C
o
n
c
re

te
 S

id
e
w

a
lk

s
, 

C
u
rb

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

ri
v
e
w

a
y
 

C
o
n
c
re

te
 M

ix
 

0
3
/1

0
/2

0
2
1

 
0
2
/2

5
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/1

1
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/0

5
/2

0
2
1

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

23

Item 9.



 
 

P
a
g

e
 6

 o
f 
8

 

S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L
 L

O
G

 

N
o
. 

S
u
b

m
it
ta

l 
/ 
S

h
o
p

 
D

ra
w

in
g

 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 

D
a
te

 
R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
T

o
 

E
n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
u
e

 
F

ro
m

 
E

n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
tu

rn
e

d
 t
o

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0

.0
 

E
P

D
M

 R
o

o
f 

0
3
/1

0
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/0

2
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/1

6
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/0

2
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

2
0
.1

 
E

P
D

M
 R

o
o
f 

0
3
/1

0
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2
1
.0

 
M

o
is

tu
re

 a
n

d
 A

ir
 

B
a
rr

ie
rs

 
0
2
/2

6
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/0

2
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/1

6
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/0

2
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

2
1
.1

 
M

o
is

tu
re

 a
n

d
 A

ir
 

B
a
rr

ie
rs

 
0
2
/2

6
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2
2
.0

 
F

ir
e
 A

la
rm

 
0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/0

3
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/0

4
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/1

7
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/0

8
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/2

4
/2

0
2
1

 
N

o
 

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 

N
o
te

d
 

2
3
.0

 
In

s
u
la

ti
o

n
 (

T
h
e
rm

a
l 
&

 
A

c
o
u
s
ti
c
a

l)
 

0
3
/1

8
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/0

3
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/1

7
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

2
3
.1

 
In

s
u
la

ti
o

n
 (

T
h
e
rm

a
l 
&

 
A

c
o
u
s
ti
c
a

l)
 

0
3
/1

8
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/2

2
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
4
/0

5
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/2

5
/2

0
2
1

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

2
4
.0

 
P

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

M
a
rk

in
g

 
0
3
/0

8
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/0

4
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/1

8
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/0

4
/2

0
2
1

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

2
5
.0

 
P

a
in

t 
0
3
/1

7
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/0

5
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/1

9
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/0

5
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

2
5
.1

 
P

a
in

t 
0
3
/1

7
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2
6
.0

 
L
u
x
u
ry

 V
in

y
l 
T

ile
 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/0

5
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/1

9
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/0

5
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
je

c
te

d
 

24

Item 9.



 
 

P
a
g

e
 7

 o
f 
8

 

S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L
 L

O
G

 

N
o
. 

S
u
b

m
it
ta

l 
/ 
S

h
o
p

 
D

ra
w

in
g

 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 

D
a
te

 
R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
T

o
 

E
n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
u
e

 
F

ro
m

 
E

n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
tu

rn
e

d
 t
o

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

ta
tu

s
 

2
6
.1

 
L
u
x
u
ry

 V
in

y
l 
T

ile
 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2
7
.0

 
B

ro
a
d

lo
o
m

 C
a
rp

e
t 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/0

5
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/1

9
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/1

7
/2

0
2
1

 
R

e
v
is

e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
b
m

it
 

2
7
.1

 
B

ro
a
d

lo
o
m

 C
a
rp

e
t 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2
8
.0

 
R

u
b
b

e
r 

B
a
s
e

 
0
3
/2

6
/2

0
2
1

 
0
3
/0

5
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/1

9
/2

0
2
1

 
 

0
3
/1

7
/2

0
2
1

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
s
 N

o
te

d
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

**
 

F
o
u
n
d

a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
c
re

te
 

M
ix

 
W

o
rk

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

S
u

b
m

it
ta

ls
 w

a
iv

e
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 s
u
b

m
it
ta

l 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
p
p

ro
v
a

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

a
s
s
 o

f 
th

ir
d

-p
a

rt
y
 S

p
e

c
ia

l 
In

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n
s
  

**
 

M
a
s
o
n
ry

 R
e

b
a
r 

W
o

rk
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 

**
 

C
M

U
 G

ro
u
t 

M
ix

 D
e
s
ig

n
 

W
o

rk
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 

**
 

R
o
u
g

h
 C

a
rp

e
n
tr

y
 

W
o

rk
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 

 
F

la
s
h
in

g
 &

 S
h
e

e
t 
M

e
ta

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
R

o
o
f 
C

o
p

in
g
s
 

0
3
/1

0
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
O

p
e
n
in

g
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 
0
3
/1

8
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
G

la
z
in

g
 

0
3
/1

0
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

25

Item 9.



 
 

P
a
g

e
 8

 o
f 
8

 

S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L
 L

O
G

 

N
o
. 

S
u
b

m
it
ta

l 
/ 
S

h
o
p

 
D

ra
w

in
g

 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 

D
a
te

 
R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
T

o
 

E
n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
u
e

 
F

ro
m

 
E

n
g

in
e
e
r 

R
e
tu

rn
e

d
 t
o

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
S

ta
tu

s
 

 
S

u
b
s
tr

a
te

 P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o

n
 

fo
r 

F
lo

o
r 

F
in

is
h
e
s
 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
E

ro
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 S

e
d

im
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
ls

 
W

o
rk

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

lu
m

b
in

g
 p

ip
in

g
, 

c
o
n
n
e
c
to

rs
, 
a

n
d
 

h
a
n
g

e
rs

 
0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
H

V
A

C
 D

u
c
t 

&
 P

ip
in

g
 

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
H

V
A

C
 S

e
is

m
ic

 C
o
n

tr
o
ls

 
0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
S

e
e

d
in

g
 

0
3
/0

8
/2

0
2
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

E
n
d
 o

f 
S

u
b

m
it
ta

l 
L
o

g
 

26

Item 9.



27

Item 9.



28

Item 9.



29

Item 9.



30

Item 9.

brittanee.fields
Highlight

brittanee.fields
Highlight

brittanee.fields
Highlight

brittanee.fields
Highlight

brittanee.fields
Highlight



31

Item 9.



32

Item 9.



33

Item 9.



34

Item 9.



35

Item 9.



36

Item 9.



37

Item 9.



38

Item 9.



39

Item 9.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Change Order #1 for Detour Road Pathway Project 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – October 10, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator – Engineering 

(5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

In June 2020, Beaufort County Engineering entered contract with Andrews Engineering under the Small 
Architecture and Engineering for projects less than $50,000 for surveying, engineering, permitting and 
construction engineering and inspection services of the Detour Road Pathway. As we proceeded with the 
design of the pathway, it was decided to extend the termini of the pathway across the Whale Branch Early 
College High School where a current 4’ sidewalk exists to replace with the new 8’ pathway.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The contract for the original scope of work was $48,500 purchased under the Small A&E registry. With the 
additional survey needed totaling $3,900, the registry threshold of $50,000 has been exceeded and approval 
is needed by Beaufort County Public Facilities Committee. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

An additional $3,900 approval of change order #1 increases the contract cost to $52,400 to be funded from 
TAG Fees Professional Services account 234201T-51160 with a remaining balance of $1,048,462.43. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of change order #1 in the amount of $3,900 to increase the contract with 
Andrews Engineering to a total of $52,400. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny Andrews Engineering change order #1 in the amount of $3,900 to increase the 
contract to a total of $52,400 for the Detour Road Pathway project. 

Next Step: Staff to execute change order as this item does not exceed $100,000, therefore; does not require 
County Council approval. 

 

40

Item 10.



 

 

2712 Bull Street, Suite A, Beaufort, SC 29902  Phone 843.379.2222  Fax 843.379.2223 

www.andrews-sc.com 

October 1, 2021 

 

Via Electronic Mail 

Ms. Brittanee Fields 

Capital Projects Coordinator 

Beaufort County Engineering 

brittanee.fields@bcgov.net 

Re:  Z20056 – Whale Branch Sidewalk – Proposal for Additional Services 

 Detour Road, Beaufort County, SC 

    

Dear Ms. Fields: 

Andrews Engineering Co. (AEC) is pleased to submit this proposal (the “Agreement”) to you (the “Client”) 

to provide additional surveying services required for the addition of 8’ sidewalk along Detour Road. 

SCOPE OF ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

 The initial scope of services was limited to the west side of Detour Road, excluding the Beaufort 

County Whale Branch High School frontage, approximately 1,800’.  Beaufort County decided to expand 

the project to include replacing the existing 4’ sidewalk across the school property, approximately 1,800’ 

with a new 8’ sidewalk to match the sidewalk proposed for the initial project limits to both the north and 

south of the school parcel. The following additional surveying services are required to incorporate this 

sidewalk upgrade across the high school tract. 

Survey  

1. Coordinate with the SC 811 utility locate service to locate the public utilities within the Detour 

Road right-of-way and the 30’ project survey limits beyond the R/W. 

2. Route survey of the 1,800+ LF of proposed sidewalk path along the west half of the Detour Road 

R/W from centerline of road to 30’ outside the western R/W line. 

3. R/W exhibits for the R/W acquisition. 

4. Set corners and R/W plats for the sidewalk route to convey the property to the SCDOT or Beaufort 

County. 

Total Amount Additional Survey Services: $3,900 

Hourly rate and additional services not included in the scope of services shall be invoiced on an 

hourly rate basis. 

AEC current hourly rates are as follows: 

a. Principal  $143.00/hour 

b. Project Manager $110.00/hour 

c. Engineer  $ 93.00/hour 

d. Technician   $ 81.00/hour 

e. Administration  $ 55.00/hour 

f. Field Inspector  $ 84.00/hour 

g. Prof. Land Surveyor $104.00/hour 

h. Party Chief  $ 81.00/hour 

41

Item 10.



Brittanee Fields 

October 1, 2021 

Z20056 Whale Branch Sidewalk 

Page 2 of 2 

2712 Bull Street, Suite A, Beaufort, SC 29902 · 843.379.2222 · Fax 843.379.2223 

 

Additional Services  

a. Additional services are those services not defined within this Agreement. 

b. The Client is responsible for payment for all services rendered, including agreed upon 

services not specifically defined within this Agreement. 

c. Additional services will be billed at the Consultant’s standard billing rates, unless 

otherwise agreed upon in writing by the Client and Consultant. 

d. Any services requiring outside consultants that are paid by AEC will be billed to the Client 

at a rate of cost times 1.15. 

Other project related reimbursable expenses, such as but not restricted to, outside consultants, 

postage, long distance telephone calls, travel expenses, courier fees, and agency permitting fees will 

be billed at actual cost plus a 15% handling fee. Fees and reimbursable expenses will be invoiced 

monthly. 

Should you find this Agreement acceptable, please confirm by signing in the space provided below 

and return an executed original to our office.  We look forward to working with you on this project.  

Should you have any questions or need additional information, please call our office.   

Sincerely, 

 

 

Steve Andrews, PE 

 

Accepted By: 

 

__________________________________________________ ________________________ 

SIGNATURE and TITLE      DATE 

42

Item 10.



 

 

2712 Bull Street, Suite A, Beaufort, SC 29902  Phone 843.379.2222  Fax 843.379.2223 

www.andrews-sc.com 

June 17, 2020 

 

Via Electronic Mail 

Mr. Jared Fralix 

Traffic & Transportation Engineering Director 

jared.fralix@bcgov.net 

Re:  Z20056 – Whale Branch Sidewalk – Proposal for Surveying, Civil Engineering, Permitting & 

Construction Engineering & Inspection Services 

 Detour Road, Beaufort County, SC 

    

Dear Mr. Fralix: 

Andrews Engineering Co. (AEC) is pleased to submit this proposal (the “Agreement”) to you (the “Client”) 

to provide surveying, civil engineering, permitting, and construction engineering and inspection services 

for the 5,525 LF (Phases 1 & 2 combined) of 8’ sidewalk along Detour Road. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

AEC and subconsultants will provide the following professional services. 

Survey & Wetland Delineation 

1. Evaluate the site soils, vegetation, and ground water conditions to determine the presence of 

freshwater wetlands, as required delineate the wetlands and survey.  Submit to the USACE for a 

Jurisdictional Concurrence Letter 

2. Coordinate with the SC 811 utility locate service to locate the public utilities within the Detour 

Road right-of-way and the 30’ project survey limits beyond the R/W. 

3. Route survey of the 5,525 LF of proposed sidewalk path along the west half of the Detour Road 

R/W from centerline of road to 30’ outside the western R/W line. 

4. R/W exhibits for the R/W acquisition. 

5. Set corners and R/W plats for the sidewalk route to convey the property to the SCDOT. 

Civil Sidewalk Construction Documents 

1. Prior to beginning the sidewalk, meet with the Client on project requirements; the sidewalk route, 

tree save requirements, methods for managing the stormwater runoff, options for sidewalk 

materials – concrete vs pervious concrete, crossings of Detour Road at the intersections and 

intermediate locations to provide access to the sidewalk for the communities along the east side 

of Detour road, and the possibility of accommodating a future water line along Detour Road with 

in the new R/W. 

2. Visit the site to identify opportunities and constraints for providing intermediate access points to 

the sidewalk, for tree saving, and drainage water quality improvements. 

3. Coordinate with the     following agencies on project requirements: 

a. Planning and Zoning (route and tree save/impact). 

b. Local water authority (possible sharing of the additional R/W with the sidewalk and a 

future waterline extension). 

c. Local MS4 or SCDHEC (land disturbance and stormwater management). 

43

Item 10.



Jared Fralix 

June 17, 2020 

Z20056 Whale Branch Sidewalk 

Page 2 of 5 

2712 Bull Street, Suite A, Beaufort, SC 29902 · 843.379.2222 · Fax 843.379.2223 

d. SCDOT (sidewalk, cross walks, and drainage improvement encroachment permit). 

4. Based on Comments received from Client and Agencies, and using the final sidewalk route plan 

as the base plan, prepare construction plans to include the following (unless requested otherwise, 

AEC construction drawings will be on 24”x36" sheets): 

a. Cover Sheet 

b. Notes and Legend 

c. Existing Conditions  

d. Demolition Plan 

e. Erosion and Sediment Control Plan 

f. Erosion and Sediment Control Details 

g. Sidewalk Layout Plan 

h. Grading and Drainage Plan 

i. Sidewalk Plan and Profiles 

j. Sidewalk Cross Sections, and 

k. Drainage and Sidewalk Details. 

l. Cross walk, signage, and striping Details.  

 

5. Produce 50% construction documents for Client review. 

6. Prepare final 100% Construction Documents based on coordination with Client and Design Team. 

Permitting 

1. Submit construction drawings to agencies having jurisdiction for review and permitting, including 

the following as applicable: 

a. Planning and Zoning (route and tree impact) 

b. Local MS4 or SCDHEC (land disturbance and stormwater) 

c. SCDOT (encroachment permit) 

d. Beaufort County School (tie-ins to existing sidewalk on school property) 

 

2. Revise plans to address final agency comments.  Resubmit for final approval. 

3. Prepare opinion of probable sidewalk construction costs based on final plans and specifications.  

Please Note: 

1. It is assumed that the entire project will be designed and permitted in one phase. 

2. Client shall be responsible for the payment of application and permit fees, impact fees, inspection 

fees, maintenance fees, bonds, and other agency charges associated with the permitting and 

construction of the Project. 

3. Opinions of probable costs that are prepared by AEC shall be based on its experience and 

qualifications and represent its judgement as a Consultant familiar with the construction industry 

but shall not be a guarantee that construction costs will not vary from its opinions of probable cost. 

4. During construction, construction drawing revisions due to changes in field conditions that are 

beyond AEC’s control will be provided on an hourly rate or negotiated fee basis. 

 

44

Item 10.



Jared Fralix 

June 17, 2020 

Z20056 Whale Branch Sidewalk 

Page 3 of 5 

2712 Bull Street, Suite A, Beaufort, SC 29902 · 843.379.2222 · Fax 843.379.2223 

Required Construction Phase Services (Assume the project will be constructed in one phase) 

1. Coordinate with Beaufort County Engineering to put the project out for bid, evaluate the bids and 

award the construction contract. 

2. During construction, interpret plans, and answer Contractor questions when requested. A total of 

10 Requests for Information (RFI) responses will be provided by AEC. Additional RFI responses, if 

requested or required for reasons beyond AEC’s control, will be charged on an hourly rate basis. 

3. Review Contractor’s site work related shop drawings and product data submittals to confirm 

general conformance with the requirements of the CCD’s. 

4. Provide construction observation as follows: 

a. Schedule, attend, and document preconstruction meetings prior to initiation of work. Such 

meetings shall be intended to facilitate communication and to minimize potential 

mistakes by the installing personnel due to a misunderstanding of the work requirements. 

b. AEC shall visit the site weekly and at more frequent intervals if required by the stage of 

construction to observe the progress and quality of the work completed by the 

Contractor. 

c. Based on this general observation, AEC shall keep the Client informed about the progress 

of the work and shall endeavor to guard the Client against deficiencies in the work. 

5. Provide the following services to comply with standard conditions of the construction permits and 

to support commissioning efforts required to certify the work complies with the CCD’s and to close 

out the construction permits. 

a. The field surveying and preparation of the as-built surveys for the site and infrastructure 

improvements will be billed as additional services on an hourly rate basis.  Drafting efforts 

by AEC to compile, revise, or otherwise provide as built or record drawings will be billed 

as additional services on an hourly rate basis.   

b. Schedule and attend sidewalk and drainage system inspections as required by Beaufort 

County Stormwater, SCDOT and OCRM. 

c. Prepare the commissioning paperwork required by Beaufort County for compliance with 

the development permit.  Schedule and attend a walk-through inspection of the sidewalk 

route with representative of Beaufort County, relay any punch list items to the contractor 

to address.  Once these items are addressed and approved by the County compile and 

submit the commissioning package to the County for the certificate of compliance with 

the development permit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45

Item 10.



Jared Fralix 

June 17, 2020 

Z20056 Whale Branch Sidewalk 

Page 4 of 5 

2712 Bull Street, Suite A, Beaufort, SC 29902 · 843.379.2222 · Fax 843.379.2223 

Fees:   

Survey  $13,900 

Engineering & Permitting $ 21,100 

Required Construction Phase Services: $ 10,000 

Total Amount AEC:  $ 45,000 

Subconsultants:  

   Wetland Delineation $3,000 

Total Amount Subconsultants: $3,000 

Reproduction and Postage $500 

Total Amount AEC and Subconsultants: $48,500 

 

Hourly rate and additional services not included in the scope of services shall be invoiced on an 

hourly rate basis. 

AEC current hourly rates are as follows: 

a. Principal  $143.00/hour 

b. Project Manager $110.00/hour 

c. Engineer  $ 93.00/hour 

d. Technician   $ 81.00/hour 

e. Administration  $ 55.00/hour 

f. Field Inspector  $ 84.00/hour 

g. Prof. Land Surveyor $104.00/hour 

h. Party Chief  $ 81.00/hour 

Filing and Permitting 

a. The Client shall pay all filing and permit fees. 

b. The Client shall pay all capacity and impact fees.   

Printing and Reproduction 

a. All sets of plans for permitting, bidding, construction, etc., will be paid for by the Client at 

a rate of $3.00 per 24” X 36” drawing. 

b. All special reproduction expenses; shipping expenses; etc., will be paid for by the Client 

at a rate of cost times 1.15. 

Additional Services  

a. Additional services are those services not defined within this Agreement. 

b. The Client is responsible for payment for all services rendered, including agreed upon 

services not specifically defined within this Agreement. 

c. Additional services will be billed at the Consultant’s standard billing rates, unless 

otherwise agreed upon in writing by the Client and Consultant. 

d. Any services requiring outside consultants that are paid by AEC will be billed to the Client 

at a rate of cost times 1.15. 

46

Item 10.



47

Item 10.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Introduction to RFQ #092021E – Consulting Services for Conversion to Electric Fleet  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – October 18, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

Neil J. Desai, P.E., Public Works Director 

(5 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

In the last 10 years electric vehicles have substantially increased in availability and performance while also 
decreasing in cost making them a viable option for business and government use.  To lessen the County’s 
environmental impact by transitioning operations to a more sustainable manner, and to potentially reduce 
costs, County staff decided explore fleet electrification options.  County Staff found during its research that 
Beaufort County would be the first county in South Carolina to convert their fleet to electric vehicles if this 
project were undertaken.  After completing their research, County staff determined that hiring a qualified 
consultant that could assess the existing County fleet and make recommendations to complete the fleet 
conversion would be the appropriate next step. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

On July 22nd a request for qualifications was published for a consultant to assess the various criteria that 
County staff felt would need to be addressed during the adoption of an electric County fleet.  Along with 
addressing the included criteria, applicants would also need to provide an implementation plan for an electric 
vehicle fleet and its accompanying infrastructure.  The request for qualifications ended on September 20th 
and the evaluation committee selected 3 of the respondents for interviews which took place on October 15th. 
County staff expects to make a recommendation of awarding the contract at the November 15th Public 
Facilities Committee meeting  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The project cost has not been presented yet. Funding will be provided through the American Rescue Plan Act 
(ARPA) funds. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

This presentation is for informational purposes. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

None 

Next Step: Staff expects to bring a recommendation for the award of the Contract for Consulting Services at 
the Public Facilities Committee Meeting on November 15th  

 

48

Item 11.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL 

NECESSARY DOCUMENTS FOR THE ACCEPTANCE OF PROPERTIES ENCUMBERING THE 

ROAD RIGHT OF WAY FOR CRYSTAL BEACH LANE 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee Meeting 10-18-2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The County has been maintaining many roads for over 20 years with an assumed prescriptive right of way 
referred to as “legacy roads”. Right of Way staff have been working with property owners to perfect the right 
of way on “legacy roads” by requesting formal conveyance of ROW from associated property owners. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The County maintained portion of Crystal Beach Lane is (~500 LF) located off Alljoy Road in Bluffton. Property 
owners associated with this road have requested to donate ROW to the County. This ROW conveyance will 
help perfect County ownership of legacy roads. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends acceptance of ROW associated with County portion of Crystal Beach Lane. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to either accept/deny ROW associated with County portion of Crystal Beach Lane. 

Next Step – Public hearing for Resolution at County Council Meeting 

 

49

Item 12.



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE ANY AND 

ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS FOR THE ACCEPTANCE OF PROPERTIES 

ENCUMBERING THE ROAD RIGHT OF WAY FOR CRYSTAL BEACH LANE 

 

WHEREAS, the property owners abutting and encumbering all or a portion of the right of way 

shown and described as Crystal Beach Lane, more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and 

incorporated herein (“ROW”); and  

WHEREAS, the aforementioned property owners have requested to have the ROW conveyed to 

Beaufort County (“County”); and 

WHEREAS, the County desires to accept the ROW in order to perfect right of way on County 

maintained roads for current road maintenance and future improvements such as rocking or paving; and  

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Crystal Beach Lane community and the County to 

accept the properties from the property owners and perfect the right of way.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County Council hereby authorizes the 

County Administrator to execute any and all necessary documents for the acceptance of properties 

encumbering the road right of way for Crystal Beach Lane.  

 

  

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____, 20___.  

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY  

 

 

      By: _______________________________ 

             Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council  

50

Item 12.



EXHIBIT A

51

Item 12.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN ACCESS AND 

UTILITY EASEMENT FOR A PORTION OF A RIGHT OF WAY OWNED BY BEAUFORT 

COUNTY KNOWN AS CASSIDY DRIVE OFF BUCKWALTER PARKWAY IN BULFFTON 

TOWNSHIP SOUTH CAROLINA 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee Meeting 10-18-2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The County ownership of Cassidy Drive is recorded in Deed Book 3710 at Page147 on 10-24-2018. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

BJWSA has requested an Access and Utility Easement to for a portion of parcel R610 022 000 1125 0000 
located on Cassidy Drive off Buckwalter Parkway in Bluffton Township. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of Access and Utility Easement to BJWSA 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to either Approve or Deny Access and Utility Easement to BJSWA. 

Next Step – 3 readings and public hearing by County Council 

 

52

Item 13.



Ordinance No. 2021/____ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN 

ACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT FOR A PORTION OF A RIGHT OF WAY OWNED 

BY BEAUFORT COUNTY KNOWN AS CASSIDY DRIVE OFF BUCKWALTER 

PARKWAY IN BULFFTON TOWNSHIP SOUTH CAROLINA. 

 

 WHEREAS, Beaufort County owns real property (“County Parcel”) known as TMS No. 

R610 022 000 1125 0000 Right of Way located in the Town of Bluffton, also known as Cassidy 

Drive off of Buckwalter Parkway; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Beaufort Jasper Water Sewer Authority has requested that Beaufort County 

grant an Access and Utility Easement of said property for the purpose of accessing, constructing 

and servicing various water/sewer functions more particularly described in document entitled 

“Access and Utility Easement” prepared by the Law firm of Tupper, Grimsley, Dean & Canandy, 

P.A (attached as Exhibit “A”) and shown on a plat entitled "Easement Plat, Access & Utility 

Easement within Cassidy Drive, Portion of Buckwalter" prepared by Thomas & Hutton, certified 

by Robert K. Morgan, III, SCPLS, preliminary dated 09/31/2021 attached as Exhibit “B”; and   

 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Council has determined that it is in its best interest to 

authorize the execution and delivery of the requested Access and Utility Easement attached as 

Exhibit “A”  and more particularly shown as "Easement Plat, Access & Utility Easement within 

Cassidy Drive, Portion of Buckwalter" attached as Exhibit “B”; and   

 

WHEREAS, S.C. Code Ann. § 4-9-130 requires that the transfer of any interest in real 

property owned by the County must be authorized by Beaufort County Council and a public 

hearing must be held.  

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 

that the County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute any and all necessary documents for 

the conveyance of an Access and Utility Easement for a portion of a right of way owned by 

Beaufort County and as described on the attached Exhibit “A” (Access and Utility Easement) and 

Exhibit “B” (Easement Plat, Access & Utility Easement within Cassidy Drive, Portion of 

Buckwalter). 

  

53

Item 13.



 

DONE this ____ day of ______________ 2021.  

      

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

  

  

 By: ______________________________________ 

   Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

    

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

 

Third and Final Reading: 

Public Hearing: 

Second Reading: 

First Reading: 

 

54

Item 13.



 

EXHIBIT A 
“Access and Utility Easement”  

 

55

Item 13.



This instrument was prepared by the law firm of 
Tupper, Grimsley, Dean & Canaday, P.A. 
 611 Bay Street 
 Beaufort, SC 29902 
843/524-1116 
 
TG&D File #0075 
 
******************************AREA ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDING*********************** 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     ) ACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT 
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT  ) 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT made this _____ day of ________________, 2021, by and between 
Beaufort County (hereinafter referred to as "Grantor") whose address is PO Box 1228, Beaufort, 
SC  29902, and Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority of 6 Snake Road, Okatie, South 
Carolina 29909 (hereinafter referred to as “Grantee”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantor is the owner of the property described herein, known as Cassidy 
Drive, a portion of Buckwalter, Town of Bluffton, Beaufort County, South Carolina; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor desires to grant to Grantee a permanent utility easement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that Beaufort 
County, for and in consideration of the sum of TEN AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($10.00), and no 
other valuable consideration, in hand paid, the receipt and legal sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, has bargained and sold, and by these presents, subject to the terms and conditions 
contained herein, does bargain, sell, convey, transfer and deliver unto Grantee a permanent 
utility easement and right-of-way, including the perpetual rights to enter upon the real estate 
hereinafter described, for the purposes intended herein, to-wit:  to enter upon, construct, extend, 
inspect, operate, replace, relocate, repair, and perpetually maintain upon, over, along, across, 
through, and under the Easement Area, various water/sewer main and service lines, manholes, 
hydrants, valves, meters, and other usual fixtures and appurtenances as may from time to time be 
or become convenient to the transaction of its business, or that of municipal, public or private 
systems, for the provision of water and sewer services to the Grantor's property, together with the 
right of ingress, egress, and access to and from, and across and upon lands of Grantor as may be 
necessary or convenient for the purposes connected therewith. 
 
 Together with the right, from time to time, to trim, cut, or remove trees, underbrush and 
other obstructions that are over, under, or through a strip of land, within the Easement Area; 
provided, however, any damage to the property of Grantor (other than that caused by trimming, 
cutting, or removing) caused by BJWSA in maintaining or repairing said water/sewer main and 
service lines, hydrants, valves, and meters, shall be borne by such Grantee.  The parties to this 
Agreement agree that if any patching or repair and/or replacement of pavement and/or curbing is 
required as a result of the actions of BJWSA, said patchwork will be the sole responsibility of the 
BJWSA.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, BJWSA will be responsible to repair and/or replace 
any other damage such Grantee causes to other utility lines servicing the Grantor’s property or 
any permanent improvement thereupon and agrees to put the Easement Area, to include 

56

Item 13.



landscaping, back to its pre-construction condition (to the extent Grantee is responsible therefor). 

The permanent easement and right-of-way hereby granted to the Grantee consists of a 
parcel of land as hereinafter described on property as shown on the drawing referenced herein 
and more particularly described as follows (herein referred to as "Easement Area"): 

ALL that certain piece, parcel or tract of land, situate, lying and being in the Town of 
Bluffton, Beaufort County, South Carolina, consisting of 0.01 acres, 473 SF, more or 
less, lying within the right-of-way of Cassidy Drive as will be more fully shown and 
identified as "Beaufort County Utility Easement" on that certain plat entitled "Easement 
Plat, Access & Utility Easement within Cassidy Drive, Portion of Buckwalter" prepared 
by Thomas & Hutton, certified by _________________, SCPLS, dated 
_______________, a copy of which is recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Beaufort County, South Carolina, in Plat Book _______ at Page _______. 

This being a portion of the property conveyed to the Grantor herein by deeds recorded in 
the Office of the Register of Deeds for Beaufort County, South Carolina, in Records 
Book 3710 at Page 141 and Deed Book 3710 at Page 147. 

TAX REF:  R610 022 000 1125 0000 (PORTION OF) 

AND ALSO, the Grantor grants to the Grantee the right and authority to approve the 
location of any additional utility easement that might be located within the above-described 
easement. 

To have and to hold said permanent easement unto the Grantee, its Successors and 
Assigns, forever. 

Grantor hereby covenants with the Grantee that it is lawfully seized and possessed of the 
real estate above-described, that it has good lawful right to convey it, or any part thereof, and that 
it will forever warrant and forever defend the title thereto against the lawful claims of its 
successors and assigns. 

57

Item 13.



WITNESS the hands and seals of the undersigned the date and year first above-written. 

IN THE PRESENCE OF: GRANTOR: 

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT 

____________________________________ By:_________________________________ 
witness signature (authorized signature) 
____________________________________  ___________________________________ 
(printed name of witness)  (printed name) 

____________________________________ Its:_________________________________ 
Notary Public signature (printed title) 
____________________________________ 
(printed name of Notary Public) 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) PROBATE 

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON ) 

PERSONALLY appeared before me the undersigned witness who made oath that s/he 

saw the within named County of Beaufort by ____________________________ its 

____________ _______________, sign, seal and as its act and deed, deliver the within written 

instrument, and that s/he with the other witness above-named witnessed the execution thereof. 

SWORN TO BEFORE ME, this _______ day of _________________, 2021. 

______________________________ ______________________________ 
(Notary Public signature) witness signature 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
(printed name of Notary Public) (printed name of witness) 
Notary Public for South Carolina  
My Commission Expires: 

County Administrator

Eric L. Greenway

58

Item 13.



IN THE PRESENCE OF:    GRANTEE: 
 
       BEAUFORT-JASPER WATER & 
       SEWER AUTHORITY 
 
____________________________________ By:_________________________________ 
witness signature      (authorized signature) 
____________________________________  ___________________________________ 
(printed name of witness)      (printed name) 
 
____________________________________ Its:_________________________________ 
Notary Public signature     (printed title) 
____________________________________ 
(printed name of Notary Public) 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      )  PROBATE 
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT   ) 
 
 PERSONALLY appeared before me the undersigned witness who made oath that s/he 

saw the within named  Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority by _____________________ 

its _____________________ sign, seal and as its act and deed, deliver the within written 

instrument, and that s/he with the other witness above-named witnessed the execution thereof. 

 SWORN TO BEFORE ME, this _______ day of _________________, 2021. 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
(Notary Public signature)    witness signature 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
(printed name of Notary Public)   (printed name of witness) 
Notary Public for South Carolina    
My Commission Expires: 

59

Item 13.



TOWN OF BLUFFTON
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

field
N/A

plat
08-31-21

drawn
LPO

reviewed
RKM

crew
N/A

BEAUFORT COUNTY
prepared for

UTILITY EASEMENT
WITHIN CASSIDY DRIVE

PORTION OF
BUCKWALTER

EASEMENT PLAT

V I C I N I T Y   M A P not to scale

060 60 120

1 INCH = 60 FEET

SHEET       OF  11job 25732.1000

Z:
\2

57
32

\2
57

32
.1

00
0\

Su
rv

ey
\D

W
G

\2
57

32
.1

00
0s

p0
1 

Be
au

fo
rt 

C
ou

nt
y 

Es
m

t.d
w

g 
- A

ug
 3

1,
 2

02
1 

- 9
:0

4:
45

 A
M

50 Park of Commerce Way
Savannah, GA 31405 •  912.234.5300

www.thomasandhutton.com

Exhibit B

60

Item 13.

http://www.thomasandhutton.com
http://www.thomasandhutton.com
http://www.thomasandhutton.com
http://www.thomasandhutton.com


BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Follow up on King George Road Private Road Acceptance into County Road System 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee Meeting 10-18-2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

Neil J. Desai, P.E., Public Works Director 

(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This item was presented to the Public Facilities Committee on August 16,2021 with Council requesting further 
research by staff. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

King George Road is a private paved road (~900 LF) located in the Verdier View subdivision off SC 46 in 
Bluffton. At one time, there was an established HOA; but it was dissolved in 1992 with the interests of the 
right of ways never being conveyed. Legal staff has recently researched ownership issues associated with 
HOAs and developers in a subdivision and has determined that only the owner of the road can convey 
interest. Since the private road petitioners do not own the road, they cannot convey it to the County.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Funded by Public Works Roads and Drainage South Account (Estimated $70,000) 
1. Road repair estimate – minimum of $50,000 (includes repairs to existing base course, and new 

asphalt course) Prices are subject to increase based on sub-surface investigation and findings. 

2. Associated roadside drainage work – minimum of $20,000 (includes re-establishing roadside drainage 
system and complete vac truck work for existing drainage pipe) 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Deny road acceptance and suggest community seek legal counsel to: 
1.  clear-up road ownership or 
2.  Re-create HOA, or 
3.  Form a Special Purpose Tax District (SPTD) Per S.C. Code Ann. Sec 4.9.30(5)(a)(ii)  

a. Establish a SPTD governed by a board of commissioners to manage funds associated with   
maintenance of road and drainage 

b. Establish a SPTD to repay County for one time improvement per Ordinance 2016/13 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to deny King George Road into County Road Inventory. 

Next Steps - A Majority Vote for Acceptance by Committee would move item forward to final acceptance by 
full County Council vote. 

 

61

Item 14.

https://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/archives/county-government/administration/ordinances/2016/13.pdf


CHAPTER 9 

County Government 

 

ARTICLE 1 

General Provisions 

 

SECTION 4-9-30. Designation of powers under each alternative form of government except board of 

commissioners form. 

 Under each of the alternate forms of government listed in Section 4-9-20, except the board of commissioners 

form provided for in Article 11, each county government within the authority granted by the Constitution and 

subject to the general law of this State shall have the following enumerated powers which shall be exercised by the 

respective governing bodies thereof: 

  (1) to adopt, use and revise a corporate seal; 

  (2) to acquire real property by purchase or gift; to lease, sell or otherwise dispose of real and personal property; 

and to acquire tangible personal property and supplies; 

  (3) to make and execute contracts; 

  (4) to exercise powers of eminent domain for county purposes except where the land concerned is devoted to a 

public use; provided, however, the property of corporations not for profit organized under the provisions of Chapter 

36 of Title 33 shall not be subject to condemnation unless the county in which their service area is located intends to 

make comparable water service available in such service area and such condemnation is for that purpose. After any 

such condemnation, the county shall assume all obligations of the corporation related to the property and the 

facilities thereon which were condemned; 

  (5)(a) to assess property and levy ad valorem property taxes and uniform service charges, including the power 

to tax different areas at different rates related to the nature and level of governmental services provided and make 

appropriations for functions and operations of the county, including, but not limited to, appropriations for general 

public works, including roads, drainage, street lighting, and other public works; water treatment and distribution; 

sewage collection and treatment; courts and criminal justice administration; correctional institutions; public health; 

social services; transportation; planning; economic development; recreation; public safety, including police and fire 

protection, disaster preparedness, regulatory code enforcement; hospital and medical care; sanitation, including solid 

waste collection and disposal; elections; libraries; and to provide for the regulation and enforcement of the above. 

However, prior to the creation of a special tax district for the purposes enumerated in this item, one of the following 

procedures is required: 

    (i) When fifteen percent of the electors in a proposed special tax district sign and present to the county 

council a petition requesting the creation of a special tax district, an election must be held in which a majority of the 

electors in that area voting in the election shall approve the creation of the special tax district, the nature of the 

services to be rendered and the maximum level of taxes or user service charges, or both, authorized to be levied and 

collected. The petition must contain a description of the proposed special tax district, the elector's signature and 

address. If the county council finds that the petition has been signed by fifteen percent or more of the electors 

resident within the area of the proposed special tax district, it may certify that fact to the county election 

commission. Upon receipt of a written resolution certifying that the petition meets the requirements of this section, 

the county election commission shall order an election to be held within the area of the proposed special tax district. 

The election ordered pursuant to this section is a special election and must be held, regulated, and conducted with 

the provisions prescribed by Chapters 13 and 17 of Title 7, except as otherwise provided in this section. The county 

election commission shall give at least thirty days' notice in a newspaper of general circulation within the proposed 

special tax district. The county election commission shall certify the result of the election to the county council and 

county council by written resolution shall publish the result of the election. 

    (ii) When a petition is submitted to the county council signed by seventy-five percent or more of the 

resident freeholders who own at least seventy-five percent of the assessed valuation of real property in the proposed 

special tax district, the county council upon certification of the petition may pass an ordinance establishing the 

special tax district. For the purposes of this item, "freeholder" has the same meaning as defined in Section 5-3-240. 

The petition must contain a designation of the boundaries of the proposed special tax district, the nature of the 

services to be rendered, and the maximum level of the taxes or user service charges, or both, authorized to be levied 

and collected. 

    (iii) When the area of the proposed special tax district consists of the entire unincorporated area of the 

county, county council may pass an ordinance establishing a special tax district. For the purposes of this item 

"unincorporated area" means the area not included within the corporate boundaries of a municipal corporation 

62

Item 14.



created pursuant to Chapter 1 of Title 5 or within a special purpose district created before March 7, 1973, to which 

has been committed the governmental service which the county council intends to provide through the proposed 

special taxing district unless the special purpose district has been dormant for five years or more. If, however, the 

same service intended to be rendered by the special taxing district is being rendered or is intended to be rendered 

within any portion of the territory of the special purpose district, then no such service may be rendered by the special 

taxing district without consent of the governing body of the special purpose district. 

   (b) In the ordinance establishing the special tax district, county council shall provide for the operation of the 

special tax district. The special tax district may be operated as an administrative division of the county, or county 

council may appoint a commission consisting of three to five members and provide for their terms of office. 

   (c) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, the county council shall not finance any service not being 

rendered by the county on March 7, 1973, by a countywide tax where the service is being provided by any 

municipality within that municipality or where the service has been budgeted or funds have been applied for as 

certified by the municipal governing body, except upon concurrence of the municipal governing body. For purposes 

of this subitem, "municipality" means a municipal corporation created pursuant to Chapter 1 of Title 5. 

   (d) Before the issuance of any general obligation bonds to provide a service in a special tax district and the 

levy of a tax to retire the bonds at rates different from those levied in the remainder of the county related to the 

nature and level of government services to be provided in the special tax district, the county council shall first 

approve the issuance of the general obligation bonds and the levy of the tax to retire the bonds by ordinance. 

   (e) County council may by ordinance diminish boundaries of or abolish a special tax district. It must first 

conduct a public hearing. Notice of the hearing must be given two weeks before it in a newspaper of general 

circulation in the tax district. 

   (f) After a special tax district is created, pursuant to the provisions of this item, the governing body of the 

county may, by ordinance, provide that the uniform service charge be collected on an annual, semiannual, quarterly, 

or monthly basis. The governing body by ordinance also may provide for monthly delinquency penalty charges by 

special tax notices. 

   (g) Any special taxing district created prior to the effective date of this act pursuant to this subsection, the 

creation of which would have been valid but for any inconsistency in or constitutional infirmity of this subsection as 

codified at the time of such creation, is hereby created and declared to be valid, and its existence is confirmed as of 

the date of its prior creation; provided, however, that any such special taxing district shall be subject to all provisions 

of this subsection as provided for in this act, including without limitation item (e). 

   (h) The creation of a street lighting system within a county may not disrupt the assignment of electric 

service rights by the Public Service Commission. The special tax district may not treat the street lighting system as 

one premises for the purchase of electric energy. Those lighting structures located in an area assigned by the South 

Carolina Public Service Commission to an electric supplier pursuant to Section 58-27-640, et seq., must be served 

by the designated electric supplier unless it consents to service by another supplier. Those light structures located in 

an unassigned area must be considered a single premises and may be served by an electric supplier pursuant to the 

customer choice provisions of Section 58-27-620 or by an electrical utility pursuant to the certificate of public 

convenience and necessity provisions of Section 58-27-1230 to serve the lighting structures planned for the 

unassigned areas. 

  After a special tax district is created pursuant to this item, the governing body of the county by ordinance may 

provide that the uniform service charge be collected on an annual, semiannual, quarterly, or monthly basis. 

  (6) to establish such agencies, departments, boards, commissions and positions in the county as may be 

necessary and proper to provide services of local concern for public purposes, to prescribe the functions thereof and 

to regulate, modify, merge or abolish any such agencies, departments, boards, commissions and positions, except as 

otherwise provided for in this title. Any county governing body may by ordinance abolish a rural or other county 

police system established pursuant to Chapter 6 of Title 53 [of the Code of Laws, 1962] and devolve the powers and 

duties of the system upon the county sheriff; provided, however, that such an ordinance shall not become effective 

until the registered electors of the county shall first approve the ordinance by referendum called by the governing 

body; 

  (7) to develop personnel system policies and procedures for county employees by which all county employees 

are regulated except those elected directly by the people, and to be responsible for the employment and discharge of 

county personnel in those county departments in which the employment authority is vested in the county 

government. This employment and discharge authority does not extend to any personnel employed in departments or 

agencies under the direction of an elected official or an official appointed by an authority outside county 

government. Any employee discharged shall follow the grievance procedures as established by county council in 

those counties where the grievance procedures are operative, retaining all appellate rights provided for in the 

63

Item 14.



procedures. In those counties where a grievance procedure is not established, a county employee discharged by the 

chief administrative officer or designated department head must be granted a public hearing before the entire county 

council if he submits a request in writing to the clerk of the county council within five days of receipt of notice of 

discharge. The hearing must be held within fifteen days of receipt of the request. The employee must be relieved of 

his duties pending the hearing and if a majority of the county council sustains the discharge, it is final subject to 

judicial review, but if a majority of the county council reverses the dismissal, the employee must be reinstated and 

paid a salary for the time he was suspended from his employment. 

  The salary of those officials elected by the people may be increased but may not be reduced during the terms 

for which they are elected, except that salaries for members of council and supervisors under the council-supervisor 

form of government must be set as provided in this chapter; 

  (8) to provide for an accounting and reporting system whereby funds are received, safely kept, allocated and 

disbursed; 

  (9) to provide for land use and promulgate regulations pursuant thereto subject to the provisions of Chapter 7 

of Title 6; 

  (10) to establish and implement policies and procedures for the issuance of revenue and general obligation 

bonds subject to the bonded debt limitation; 

  (11) to grant franchises and make charges in areas outside the corporate limits of municipalities within the 

county in the manner provided by law for municipalities and subject to the same limitations, to provide for the 

orderly control of services and utilities affected with the public interest; provided, however, that the provisions of 

this subsection shall not apply to persons or businesses acting in the capacity of telephone, telegraph, gas and 

electric utilities, or suppliers, nor shall it apply to utilities owned and operated by a municipality; provided, further, 

that the provisions of this subsection shall apply to the authority to grant franchises and contracts for the use of 

public beaches; 

  (12) to levy uniform license taxes upon persons and businesses engaged in or intending to engage in a business, 

occupation, or profession, in whole or in part, within the county but outside the corporate limits of a municipality 

except those persons who are engaged in the profession of teaching or who are ministers of the gospel and rabbis, 

except persons and businesses acting in the capacity of telephone, telegraph, gas and electric utilities, suppliers, or 

other utility regulated by the Public Service Commission and except an entity which is exempt from license tax 

under another law or a subsidiary or affiliate of any such exempt entity. No county license fee or tax may be levied 

on insurance companies. No county license fee or tax may be levied on a professional sports team as defined in 

Section 12-6-3360(M)(17). The license tax must be graduated according to the gross income of the person or 

business taxed. A business engaged in making loans secured by real estate is subject to the license tax only if it has 

premises located in the county but outside the corporate limits of a municipality. If the person or business taxed pays 

a license tax to another county or to a municipality, the gross income for the purpose of computing the tax must be 

reduced by the amount of gross income taxed in the other county or municipality. 

  (13) to participate in multi-county projects and programs authorized by the general law and appropriate funds 

therefor; 

  (14) to enact ordinances for the implementation and enforcement of the powers granted in this section and 

provide penalties for violations thereof not to exceed the penalty jurisdiction of magistrates' courts. Alleged 

violations of such ordinances shall be heard and disposed of in courts created by the general law including the 

magistrates' courts of the county. County officials are further empowered to seek and obtain compliance with 

ordinances and regulations issued pursuant thereto through injunctive relief in courts of competent jurisdiction. No 

ordinance including penalty provisions shall be enacted with regard to matters provided for by the general law, 

except as specifically authorized by such general law; and 

  (15) to undertake and carry out slum clearance and redevelopment work in areas which are predominantly slum 

or blighted, the preparation of such areas for reuse, and the sale or other disposition of such areas to private 

enterprise for private uses or to public bodies for public uses and to that end the General Assembly delegates to any 

county the right to exercise the power of eminent domain as to any property essential to the plan of slum clearance 

and redevelopment. Any county may acquire air rights or subsurface rights, both as hereinafter defined, by any 

means permitted by law for acquisition or real estate, including eminent domain, and may dispose of air rights and 

subsurface rights regardless of how or for what purpose acquired for public use by lease, mortgage, sale, or 

otherwise. Air rights shall mean estates, rights, and interests in the space above the surface of the ground or the 

surface of streets, roads, or rights-of-way including access, support, and other appurtenant rights required for the 

utilization thereof; 

  (16) to conduct advisory referenda; 

64

Item 14.



  (16.1) to enact ordinances to regulate solicitation within the county by requiring permits therefor, establish 

criteria for issuing such permits and provide for a fine of one hundred dollars or thirty days' imprisonment for 

violations; and 

  (16.2) To obtain injunctive relief in the Court of Common Pleas to abate nuisances created by the operation of 

business establishments in an excessively noisy or disorderly manner which disturbs the peace in the community in 

which such establishments are located. Such injunctive relief shall be initiated by petition of the County Attorney in 

the name of the County Council not sooner than ten days following noncompliance with a written notice to the 

owner of the offending establishment or his agent to cease and desist in the conduct or practice which disturbs the 

peace and good order of the area. The provisions of this item are supplemental to Chapter 43 of Title 15. 

  (17) to exercise such other powers as may be authorized for counties by the general law. The governing body 

of any county shall not create a special tax district, other than watershed district, any portion of which falls within 

the corporate boundaries of a municipality, except upon the concurrence of the governing body of the municipality. 

 

HISTORY: 1962 Code Section 14-3703; 1975 (59) 692; 1976 Act No. 601; 1976 Act No. 693; 1977 Act No. 74; 

1982 Act No. 420; 1988 Act No. 312, Section 1, eff February 24, 1988; 1988 Act No. 495, Section 1, eff May 9, 

1988; 1989 Act No. 176, Section 2, eff June 6, 1989; 1991 Act No. 114, Sections  1, 2, eff June 5, 1991; 1994 Act 

No. 405, Section 1, eff May 24, 1994; 1999 Act No. 113, Section 21, eff June 30, 1999; 2019 Act No. 83 (H.4243), 

Section 2, eff May 22, 2019. 

Editor's Note 

1995 Act No. 52, Section 1, provides as follows: 

"SECTION 1. In furtherance of the powers granted to the counties of this State pursuant to the provisions of Section 

4-9-30, and Section 6-21-10 et seq., of the 1976 Code, each of the counties of this State is authorized to establish 

transportation authorities and to finance, following the public hearing and referendum required in this act, the cost of 

acquiring, designing, constructing, equipping and operating highways, roads, streets, and bridges, and other 

transportation-related projects, either alone or in partnership with other governmental entities including, but not 

limited to, the South Carolina Department of Transportation." 

2019 Act No. 83, Section 9.B, provides as follows: 

"B. The provisions of Sections 4-9-30 and 5-7-30 relating to a professional sports team, and the provisions of 

Section 5-3-20 only apply so long as the job and payroll provisions of Section 12-6-3360(M)(17) and (P) continue to 

be met by the professional sports team." 

Effect of Amendment 

The first 1988 amendment (1988 Act No. 312, Section 1) rewrote paragraph (7), relating to employee discharge and 

grievance procedures. 

The second 1988 amendment (1988 Act No. 495, Section 1) rewrote paragraph (12) adding a provision exempting 

from the license tax any entity exempt under any other law, and adding a provision limiting the right to levy a 

business license tax on businesses making loans secured by real estate. 

The 1989 amendment, in paragraph (5), added the third paragraph. 

The 1991 amendment, in paragraph (5), in what later became subparagraph (f), added "After a special tax district is 

created, pursuant to the provisions of this item, the governing body of the county may, by ordinance, provide that the 

uniform service charge be collected on an annual, semiannual, quarterly, or monthly basis." 

The 1994 amendment, in paragraph (12), added a sentence providing "No county license fee or tax may be levied on 

insurance companies." 

The 1999 amendment inserted "and make charges" and the last provision regarding applicability to franchises and 

contracts for use of public beaches in subsection (11). 

2019 Act No. 83, Section 2, in (12), inserted the third sentence, providing that no county license fee or tax may be 

levied on a professional sports team. 

 

 

65

Item 14.



 
66

Item 14.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

RAINBOW ROAD STATUS DISCUSSION 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee Meeting 10-18-2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Rainbow Road is a dirt road located off Gibbet Road in Bluffton. Abutting property owners of this road 
petitioned for Road Acceptance in December of 1994. County Council accepted this road on March 13, 1995. 
The road was deeded to the County by S. A. Huggins on October 26, 1995. The County has been maintaining 
this road since 1995. Ownership of this road has been in question because S.A. Huggins deeded the Road to 
the Huggins Subdivision Owner’s Association, Inc on September 15, 1982 prior to conveyance to the County in 
1995. This road was scheduled for year 3 of the current 5-year paving plan, but conflicts associated with Right 
of Way widths and County Ownership prompted legal staff to research road ownership further. Legal staff has 
determined that although the Huggins Subdivision Owner’s Association, Inc has never been registered with 
Secretary of State, covenant restrictions were clearly recorded. It was determined that S.A. Huggins could not 
convey Rainbow Road to the County since it was already conveyed to Huggins Subdivision Owner’s 
Association, Inc. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Staff has removed Rainbow Road from year 3 paving project due to ownership issues and reduced funding 
associated with decreased collections from TAG funds. Councilman Cunningham has recommended a 
community meeting in October to outline community options associated with change in road status: 
 1. Establish a timeline for County to cease maintenance of Rainbow Road. 
 2. Suggest community seek legal direction regarding Huggins Subdivision Owner’s Association, Inc. Once 
resolved, Association can petition for road acceptance. 
 3.  Form a Special Purpose Tax District (SPTD) Per S.C. Code Ann. Sec 4.9.30(5)(a)(ii) to collect and manage 
funds to facilitate road and drainage maintenance and repairs. 
  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Discussion Item Only 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Discussion Item Actions if applicable 

Next Step – Schedule Community Meeting after PFC meeting discussion 

 

67

Item 15.



Rainbow Road SD M 

 
  

68

Item 15.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Adoption of Buckwalter Access Management Plan 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – October 18, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator - Engineering 

(5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

In 2007, Beaufort County adopted the Buckwalter Parkway Access Management Study in Ordinance 2008/17 
amending the Zoning and Development Standards regarding access management standards for Buckwalter 
Parkway and Bluffton Parkway, respectively. As this access management plan is 13 years old, Beaufort County 
procured Bihl Engineering to analysis the corridor from US 278 just short of Bluffton Parkway and update the 
plan. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Bihl Engineering has identified access management needs and updates to the corridor.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Adopt the Buckwalter Access Management Plan by amending Ordinance 2008/17. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny adopting the Buckwalter Access Management Plan by amending Ordinance 2008/17. 

Next Step: Move forward to County Council to adopt the Buckwalter Access Management Plan by amending 
Ordinance 2008/17. 

 

 

69

Item 16.



Buckwalter Parkway 
Access Management 
Plan Update
SEPTEMBER  7,  2021  (UPDATED)

70

Item 16.



71

Item 16.



72

Item 16.



73

Item 16.



74

Item 16.



75

Item 16.



Corridor Standards Per CDC
•2,000‐foot spacing signalized intersections
•All other intersections RIRO desired – minimum 500‐foot spacing with joint access, if parcel has 
access to a signalized intersection 800‐foot spacing

•Signalized Intersection Locations in CDC
o Buckwalter Parkway at US 278
o Buckwalter Parkway at Cinema South (2,800 feet south of US 278)
o Buckwalter Parkway at Sea Turtle South (2,050 feet south of Cinema South)
o Buckwalter Parkway at Buckwalter Town Center South (2,550 feet south of Cinema South)
o Buckwalter Parkway at Bluffton Parkway and the Townes of Buckwalter (this signal will be relocated once

Phase 5b of the Bluffton Parkway is completed)
o Buckwalter Parkway at Bluffton Parkway and Hampton Hall
o Buckwalter Parkway at H.E. McCracken Circle and Old Bridge Drive
o Buckwalter Parkway at SC 46 (May River Road)

76

Item 16.



Signalized Intersection Spacing by Scenario

Segment Start Segment End Approximate Distance between 
Intersections (feet)

Scenario 1

1 US 278 Pinellas Drive South/Berkeley Place Driveway #2 2,946
2 Pinellas Drive South/Berkeley Place Driveway #2 Ludlow Street 1,960
3 Ludlow Street Innovation Drive 1,585
4 Innovation Drive Buckwalter Place Boulevard 995
5 Buckwalter Place Boulevard Bluffton Parkway (relocated) 1,667
6 Bluffton Parkway (relocated) Lake Point Drive (relocated) 1,703
Scenario 2
1 US 278 Pinellas Drive North/Berkeley Place Driveway #1 2,026
2 Pinellas Drive South/Berkeley Place Driveway #1 Mott Street/Parkside Drive 1,788
3 Mott Street/Parkside Drive Kroger Fuel Center Drive 2,176
4 Kroger Fuel Center Drive Buckwalter Place Boulevard 1,496
5 Buckwalter Place Boulevard Bluffton Parkway (relocated) 1,667
6 Bluffton Parkway (relocated) Lake Point Drive (relocated) 1,703

77

Item 16.



Access Locations – Scenario 2
 Signalized Intersection Access

o Buckwalter Place Boulevard/Lord of Life Driveway (existing)
 Signalized Intersection Access (when warranted)

o Berkeley Place Driveway #1/Pinellas Drive North (roadway improvements will be required)
o Mott Street/Parkside Drive
o Kroger Fuel Driveway

 Right-in, right-out Intersection Access
o Cassidy Drive
o Berkeley Place Driveway #2/Pinellas Drive South
o Ludlow Street
o Innovation Drive
o Progressive Street (existing)

 Right-in only Intersection Access
o Buckwalter Place Driveway (existing)

78

Item 16.



Connectivity
 New roadway between US 278 and Berkeley Place Driveway 1 on the west side of Buckwalter Parkway
 New east-west roadway from Cassidy Drive to the future Willow Run development and the planned north/south roadway that will

connect future Bluffton Parkway to US 278 near Eagle’s Pointe
 New north-south roadway between Cassidy Drive and Pinellas Drive North
 New east-west roadway from Pinellas Drive North to the future Willow Run development and the planned north/south roadway that will

connect future Bluffton Parkway to US 278 near Eagle’s Pointe
 Realignment and installation of new Berkeley Place Driveway 1, connecting to the Berkeley Place parking area further west and

removing the existing curve and parking lot connection
 New east-west roadway from Pinellas Drive South to the future Willow Run development and the planned north/south roadway that will

connect future Bluffton Parkway to US 278 near Eagle’s Pointe
 New north-south roadway between Pinellas Drive South and Parkside Drive
 Complete north-south connection between Berkeley Place and Bluffton Commons
 New north-south roadway between Innovation Drive and Bluffton Commons
 Conversion of Kroger Fuel Center Drive to full access intersection and installation of a new east-west roadway connecting to the new

north-south access roads parallel to Buckwalter Parkway
 New north-south access roadway on the east side of Buckwalter Parkway, connecting the new Kroger Fuel Center Drive intersection

and Buckwalter Towne Boulevard
 New connector between Lord of Life Church Road and new north-south access road
 Relocation of intersection of Bluffton Parkway at Buckwalter Parkway intersection (by others)

79

Item 16.



80

Item 16.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Buckwalter/Bluffton Parkway (BP²) Intersection Discussion  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – October 18, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator, Engineering  

15 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

BP2 Intersection Project was discussed and approved at September 21, 2021 for staff to begin preliminary 
engineering on the project. The motion was approved to allocate $2.5M of Impact Fees to the project. This 
motion was not carried to full Council for approval.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Staff has been working with HDR engineering consultant to develop various access options to accompany the 
intersection realignment. Four options (A-D) have been developed. These four options have been presented 
to Town of Bluffton staff and Bluffton Town Council for review and comments. Town Council provided 
comments and suggested a fifth option (Option E) along with concepts for potential phasing for the project. A 
public meeting was on October 14, 2021 at the Buckwalter Recreation Complex for further comments.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Final cost estimate to be determined upon option selected and preliminary design complete.                            

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends committee to select preferred option for staff to proceed with further preliminary design 
and cost estimate.  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to allow staff to develop preliminary engineering and cost estimate of preferred option.  

(Next step:  Staff to develop cost estimate for option selected to bring back to PFC for approval.) 

 

 

81

Item 17.



BLUFFTON PARKWAY

IN
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
 D

R
IV

E

BLUFFTON PARKWAY

B
U

C
K

W
A
L
T
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

BUCKW
ALTER PARKW

AY

L
A

K
E
 P

O
IN

T
E
 D

R
IV

E

BUCKWALT
ER T

OWNE B
LV

D

BUCKWALTER PLACE BLVD

LORD OF LIFE LUTHERAN

B
U

C
K

W
A

L
T
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

IN
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
 D

R
IV

E
 E

X
T
.

82

Item 17.

JDOWDY
Text Box
BLUFFTON BUCKWALTER OPTION A

JDOWDY
Text Box
SCALE: 1 INCH = 40 FEET



BLUFFTON PARKWAY

IN
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
 D

R
IV

E

BLUFFTON PARKWAY

B
U

C
K

W
A
L
T
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

BUCKW
ALTER PARKW

AY

L
A

K
E
 P

O
IN

T
E
 D

R
IV

E

BUCKWALTER PLACE BLVD

B
U

C
K

W
A

L
T
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

IN
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
 D

R
IV

E
 E

X
T
.

BUCKWALT
ER T

OWNE B
LV

D

LORD OF LIFE LUTHERAN

83

Item 17.

JDOWDY
Text Box
BLUFFTON BUCKWALTER OPTION B

JDOWDY
Text Box
SCALE: 1 INCH = 40 FEET



BLUFFTON PARKWAY

IN
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
 D

R
IV

E

BLUFFTON PARKWAY

B
U

C
K

W
A
L
T
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

BUCKWALT
ER T

OWNE B
LV

D

BUCKWALTER PLACE BLVD

LORD OF LIFE LUTHERAN

B
U

C
K

W
A

L
T
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

IN
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
 D

R
IV

E
 E

X
T
.

BUCKW
ALTER PARKW

AY

LA
K
E
 P

O
IN

T
E
 D

R
IV

E
 R

E
LO

C
A
T
IO

N

LAKE POINTE DRIVE RELOCATION

84

Item 17.

JDOWDY
Text Box
BLUFFTON BUCKWALTER OPTION C

JDOWDY
Text Box
SCALE: 1 INCH = 40 FEET



BLUFFTON PARKWAY

IN
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
 D

R
IV

E

BLUFFTON PARKWAY

B
U

C
K

W
A
L
T
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

BUCKW
ALTER PARKW

AY

BUCKWALT
ER T

OWNE B
LV

D

BUCKWALTER PLACE BLVD

LORD OF LIFE LUTHERAN

B
U

C
K

W
A

L
T
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

L
A

K
E
 P

O
IN

T
E
 D

R
IV

E
 R

E
L
O

C
A
T
IO

N

LA
K
E
 P

O
IN

T
E
 D

R
IV

E
 R

E
LO

C
A
T
IO

N

IN
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
 D

R
IV

E
 E

X
T
.

85

Item 17.

JDOWDY
Text Box
BLUFFTON BUCKWALTER OPTION D

JDOWDY
Text Box
SCALE: 1 INCH = 40 FEET



BLUFFTON PARKWAY

IN
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
 D

R
IV

E

BLUFFTON PARKWAY

B
U

C
K

W
A
L
T
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

BUCKW
ALTER PARKW

AY

BUCKWALT
ER T

OWNE B
LV

D

BUCKWALTER PLACE BLVD

LORD OF LIFE LUTHERAN

B
U

C
K

W
A

L
T
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

L
A

K
E
 P

O
IN

T
E
 D

R
IV

E
 R

E
L
O

C
A
T
IO

N

LA
K
E
 P

O
IN

T
E
 D

R
IV

E
 R

E
LO

C
A
T
IO

N

IN
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
 D

R
IV

E
 E

X
T
.

PHASE 1

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 3

PHASE 4

PHASE 5

86

Item 17.

JDOWDY
Text Box
BLUFFTON BUCKWALTER OPTION E WITH PHASES

JDOWDY
Text Box
SCALE: 1 INCH = 40 FEET



Charles Lind Brown Center/
Greene Street Gym

Survey results & a path forward

87

Item 18.



CLBCC Task Force goals

 Revitalize the Charles Lind Brown Community 
Center, aka Greene Street Gym

 Conduct survey to determine:
a. Citizen interest in reopening the Center 
b.  Activities/services desired at the Center

 Communicate survey results to City & County

 Partner with County, City & community to 
bring survey results to fruition

88

Item 18.



Date created: June 22, 2021

Date ended: Aug. 18, 2021

Complete responses: 495

495
Total responses

89

Item 18.



Q1: Do you live in the City of Beaufort?
Answered: 490    Skipped: 5

90

Item 18.



Answered 417  Skipped 78 

Q2: If you know the name of your neighborhood, please put it here *

*Note: Larger type indicates more responses. 91

Item 18.



Q6: Ages 0-18 & their interests

92

Item 18.



Q9: Ages 19-54 & their interests

93

Item 18.



Q12: Ages 55+ & their interests

94

Item 18.



Comparison of interests

Ages 0-18 Ages 19-54 Ages 55+

95

Item 18.



Q7: If you have children in your household of school age, what do they do 
after school? Check all that apply.
Answered: 432    Skipped: 63

Responses for other: sports and jobs

`
227

127

62
25

42
16

96

Item 18.



Q10 & 13: Willingness to volunteer at Charles Lind Brown Center

Ages 19-54 Ages 55+

97

Item 18.



Q17: What is important for you & family in days/hours of operation?
Answered: 463    Skipped: 32

Note: Pickleball will be available for a limited period during some morning hours. 98

Item 18.



Task Force recommendations

 Adequate staffing of Charles Lind Brown Community Center

 Task Force, County and City explore partnering opportunities 

 Partner with outside entities to offer activities not under County Parks & Rec umbrella

Questions?

99

Item 18.



ADDITIONAL SLIDES BELOW

100

Item 18.



Q1: Do you live in the City of Beaufort?

Answered: 490    Skipped: 5

101

Item 18.



Q3: Have you or a member of your family ever attended an event or 

activity at the Charles Lind Brown Center/Greene Street Gym?

Answered: 493    Skipped: 2

102

Item 18.



Q4: If the answer is yes, when did you last visit the center/gym?

Answered: 366    Skipped: 129

103

Item 18.



Q5-6    Ages 0-18 

How many per household

Types of programs of interest 

104

Item 18.



Q8-9: Ages 19 to 54

Answered: 475    Skipped: 20

How many per household

Types of programs of interest 

105

Item 18.



Q11-12:  Age 55 or older

Answered: 479    Skipped: 16

How many per household

Types of programs of interest 

106

Item 18.



Q14: Would you or your family members need transportation to attend 

events & activities at the center?

Answered: 481    Skipped: 14

107

Item 18.



Q15-16: Would you be willing to pay a yearly fee? If so, how much?

Answered: 460    Skipped: 35

108

Item 18.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Facilities Master Plan update 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – October 18, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator – Engineering 

David Wilhelm, Capital Projects Director 

(5 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Beaufort County retained the professional services of Creech & Associates to perform a Space Needs Analysis 
(SNA) and a Facilities Master Plan (FMP) with the goal of developing a comprehensive, long-range plan for the 
immediate and future facilities needs of Beaufort County.  At a special called meeting of County Council on 
August 19, 2021 Creech & Associates presented their report to County Council.   

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Staff has been working to create a timeline for construction and budgeting for the improvements outlined in 
the Creech report by prioritizing the projects.  Once the timeline is developed a full implementation plan will 
be presented to County Council.  The goal is to present a recommendation for moving forward with a plan 
that to build the new infrastructure as quickly as possible in a fiscally responsible manner. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

None at this time. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

None at this time. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

None at this time. 

Next Step: Staff will continue to develop an implementation plan to present at a future Public Facilities 
Committee meeting. 

 

109

Item 19.


	Top
	Item 7.	HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT (HXD) - JANITORIAL SERVICES
	AIS HXD Janitorial Oct 2021
	Summary Score Sheet - Final Round

	Item 8.	Beaufort Executive Airport (ARW) - Janitorial Services
	AIS ARW Janitorial October 2021
	Summary Score Sheet - Final Round

	Item 9.	Change Order #2 for DNA Laboratory Addition A&E Services ($67,717.25)
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities 101821 DNA Laboratory CO#2
	19044 COP 002 August 12, 2021
	Beaufort Design Build proposal
	CO#1 BDB DNA Laboratory Addition

	Item 10.	Change Order #1 for Detour Road Pathway Project ($52,400)
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities 101821 Detour Road Pathway Engineering CO#1
	Z20056 Whale Branch Sidewalk Additional Scope Proposal_20-0617
	Andrews Eng Design Proposal - Signed

	Item 11.	Consulting Services for Conversion to Electric Fleet
	AIS for RFQ 092021E

	Item 12.	Crystal Beach Lane ROW Resolution
	AIS Crystal Beach Lane Resolution
	Resolution ROW Acceptance Crystal Beach Lane
	Exhibit A Crystal Beach Lane

	Item 13.	BJWSA Access and Utility Easement off Cassidy Drive in Bluffton Township
	AIS Cassidy Drive BJWSA Easement 2021
	Ordinance-BJWSA -Cassidy Dr. 10-07-21
	Exhibit A BJWSA Easement 2021-Cassidy Drive - Tupelo III -
	Cassidy Dr Exhibit B BJWSA 25732.1000

	Item 14.	King George Rd Private Road Acceptance follow up
	AIS King George Road private road acceptance PFC 10-18-21 with NJD edits
	SC 4.9.30(5) ii highlighted
	King George Road Map

	Item 15.	Rainbow Road Status Update
	AIS Rainbow Road Status Discussion
	Rainbow Road SD Map

	Item 16.	Adoption of Buckwalter Access Management Plan
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities 101821 Buckwalter Access Management Plan
	210907 Access Management Presentation Update Bluffton smaller

	Item 17.	BP²
	BP2 Intersection Discussion
	Bluffton_Buckwalter_OptionA_2021-10-14
	Bluffton_Buckwalter_OptionB_2021-10-14
	Bluffton_Buckwalter_OptionC_2021-10-14
	Bluffton_Buckwalter_OptionD_2021-10-14
	Bluffton_Buckwalter_OptionE_with_Phases_2021-10-14

	Item 18.	Charles Lind Brown Task Force Presentation
	CLB Survey Presentation Sept 2021_final

	Item 19.	Facilities Master Plan update
	AIS for FMP update October 18 PFC

	Bottom

